
 

 

 

 

COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Tuesday, 5th July, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

The Guildhall, High Street, 
Worcester WR1 2EY 

 
 



2 

COUNCIL  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as 

you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated 
disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the 
ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted 

mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below 
in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 
 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies 
of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. 

Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is 
anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background 
papers are open to public inspection. 

 
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording 

and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on 
the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing 
to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or 
recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 
Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are 
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be 

posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City 
Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being 
published live to the Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate 

or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of 
the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, 
or breach any statutory provision. 

 
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter 

on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 12 noon on the last 
working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 
 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries about this Agenda, require any details of background papers, or wish to 
discuss the arrangements for public participation please contact Claire Chaplin, Democratic and 

Civic Services Manager, Democratic Services, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 
01905 722005 (direct line); E-Mail Address: 
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk  

 
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 
minority languages. Please contact the above-named officer for further information. 
 

 



3 

Council 
Tuesday, 5 July 2022 

 

Members of the Council:- 

 

Chair: The Mayor 
 

Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo) 
Councillor Basharat Ali (L) 

Councillor Mel Allcott (LD) 
Councillor Mohammad Altaf (C) 
Councillor Alan Amos (C) 

Councillor Jenny Barnes (LCo) 
Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) 

Councillor Marjory Bisset (G) 
Councillor Owen Cleary (C) 
Councillor Steve Cockeram (G) 

Councillor Zoe Cookson (L) 
Councillor Simon Cronin (L) 

Councillor Lynn Denham (L) 
Councillor Jill Desayrah (L) 
Councillor Allah Ditta (C) 

Councillor Shafaz Ditta (C) 
Councillor Simon Geraghty (C) 

Councillor Adrian Gregson (L) 
 

Councillor Nida Hassan (C) 
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C) 

Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C) 
Councillor Matthew Lamb (L) 
Councillor Neil Laurenson (G) 

Councillor Karen Lawrance (LD) 
Councillor Karen Lewing (G) 

Councillor Steve Mackay (C) 
Councillor Chris Mitchell (C) 
Councillor Robyn Norfolk (L) 

Councillor Tom Piotrowski (G) 
Councillor Jabbar Riaz (L) 

Councillor Andrew Roberts (C) 
Councillor Andy Stafford (C) 
Councillor James Stanley (C) 

Councillor Louis Stephen (G) 
Councillor Richard Udall (L) 

 

 

  

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  
LD = Liberal Democrat 

 

You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the Worcester City Council to be 
held at The Guildhall, High Street, Worcester WR1 2EY on Tuesday, 5th July, 2022 at 

7.00 pm at which meeting the following business is proposed to be transacted. 
 

AGENDA 

 
Part 1 

(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 18 

 Of the meetings held on 17th May 2022 to be approved and signed. 
 

4. Mayor's Communications  

 To receive any communications the Mayor may wish to make. 
 



4 

5. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 

maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 
Council in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10. 

 

6. Questions  

 The Joint Leader of the Council or the Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee 

to take any questions that may be submitted in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rule 9. 
 

7. Notice of Motion  

 To consider any Notices of Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rule 8. 

 
Cost of Living 

 
This Council notes that: 
 

On 1 April 2022 Ofgem increased the energy price cap by 54 per cent.  This 
means the average standard tariff energy bill will increase by £693 per year and 

the average pre-pay meter energy bill will increase by £708 per year.  (1) 
 
The Government has not applied the pensions “triple lock” for 2022/23 meaning 

that Worcester’s pensioners will see a rise of just 3.1 per cent this year as 
opposed to 8.3 per cent under the triple lock formula. This year, this will cost a 

Worcester pensioner on the full new state pension an average of £487 and a 
Worcester pensioner on the full basic state pension an average of £373.  (2) 
 

Worcester Foodbank fed 10,838 people in 2021 and has seen a 22% rise in 
demand since 2020.  More than 1 in 3 people fed by Worcester Foodbank are 

children.  (3) 
 
This Council therefore declares a ‘Cost of Living Emergency’ and requests the 

Managing Director to write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer and express this 
Council’s wish for Government to: 

 
Immediately remove the standard rate of VAT on fuel from 5 per cent to 0 per 

cent saving Worcester households £100 (£98.55 on the average standard tariff 
maximum and £100.85 on the average pre-pay meter energy bill); 
 

Immediately reduce the standard rate of VAT from 20 per cent to 17.5 per cent 
for one year further saving the average Worcester household £587.50 this year 

(4); 
 
Immediately apply and backdate the pensions “triple lock” for this year (2022/23) 

to support Worcester’s pensioners now. 
  

(1) Ofgem website announcement 3rd March 2022 
(2) TUC statement 18th March 2022 
(3) Worcester Foodbank website statement 20th June 2022 

(4) Officer for Budget Responsibility October 2021 VAT Forecast  
 



5 

Proposed by: Councillor Allcott  
 

Dines Green Community Police Post 
 

Council is concerned about the proposals by the Police and Crime Commissioner 
to close the Dines Green Community Police Post. Council opposes such a decision 
and believes the Commissioner should continue to provide a permanent police 

presence in St John’s and west of the river, which would be responsive to local 
needs and would assist with community engagement and community safety.  

Council therefore mandates the Managing Director to request that the Police and 
Crime Commissioner reconsiders his proposal and to work with the City Council to 
consider alternatives to closure and disposal. 

 
Proposed by: Councillor Udall  

 
Protection and Engagement – Private Renters   
 

This Council is committed to protecting and engaging with private renters as no 
one should live in a home that is damp, in a poor state of repair, overcrowded or 

unaffordable. Private renters need to hear more from Worcester City Council 
about the rights they have and how to exercise them.  

 
Council therefore resolves to instruct Officers to compile an Action Plan for 
consideration by the Council’s Communities Committee identifying measures of 

how the Council can further protect and engage with private renters. Examples of 
such measures include: 

 
The serving of compliance notices for excess cold in homes that fail Minimum 
Energy Efficiency Standards. 

Training and information provided to Councillors on how the Council can help 
residents in rented properties. 

Information Pack provided by the Council including how to access any help for 
private renters. 
The feasibility of a confidential reporting system for tenants. 

 
Proposed by: Councillor Denham  

 
8. The Local Government Boundary Commission for England: Electoral 

Review - Warding Arrangements Consultation  

Page(s): 19 - 62 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Sian Stroud, Corporate Director, Planning and Governance 
Tel: 01905 722017 

 That the Council agrees the Warding Arrangements Submission set out in Appendix 

1 as its collective response to the initial consultation being undertaken by the Local 
Government Boundary Commission for England and authorises the Corporate 

Director - Planning and Governance to submit this document to the Commission, 
on behalf of the Council. 
 

9. Amendments to the Constitution  

Page(s): 63 - 66 

Ward(s): All Wards 



6 

Contact Officer:  Sian Stroud, Corporate Director, Planning and Governance 
Tel: 01905 722017 

 That the Council approves, with immediate effect, the amendments to the 
Constitution set out in this report and authorises the Corporate Director - Planning 

and Governance to make the necessary drafting changes to the Constitution. 
 

10. Report from the Relevant Committee on Matters which are Referred to 

Council for Decision  
 To receive reports on matters which by law or in accordance with the Constitution 
are referred to Council for decision. 

 

10.1 Referral Report  from Policy and Resources Committee 24th May 2022 - Treasury 

Management Annual Report for 2021/22  
Page(s): 67 - 80 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 
Tel: 01905 722007 

 That the Council receives the Treasury Management Annual Report 2021/22. 

10.2 Referral Report from Communities Committee 8th June 2022 - Provision of a new 
Artificial Grass Pitch at Perdiswell  

Page(s): 81 - 90 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and Resources 

Tel: 01905 722536 

 That the Council agrees an ‘in principle’ capital allocation of £200k to unlock 

specialist support from the Football Foundation to facilitate the development of a 
business case and detailed design. 

 

10.3 Referral Report from Policy and Resources Committee 4th July 2022 - Termination 
of Revenues and Benefits Management Contract  
Page(s): 91 - 100 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and Resources 

Tel: 01905 722536 

 That the Council approves the return of the Revenues and Benefits to an in-house 
shared service, with staff employed by Malvern Hills District Council, noting that 

further reports will be brought to the Policy and Resources Committee once the 
transfer has been completed and a review of the service has commenced. 

 

11. Report from the Joint Leader of the Council on any matters which he is of 
the opinion require urgent consideration by The Council  

 To receive a report, if necessary. 
 

12. Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information  



7 

 The Council is invited to pass the following resolution:- 
 

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 

business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 

PART II 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE) 

 
13. Any Exempt Issues  

 To consider any exempt matters which might arise. 

 

 
David Blake  

Managing Director  
Guildhall  
Worcester WR1 2EY  

Date: 27th June 2022



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL COUNCIL 

 
17th May 2022 

 
Present:  
 

The Mayor, Councillor Stephen Hodgson, in 
the Chair 

 
 Councillors Agar, Ali, Allcott, Altaf, 

A. Amos, Barnes, Bayliss, Bisset, Cleary, 
Cockeram, Cookson, Cronin, Denham, 
Desayrah, Ditta, Ditta, Geraghty, Gregson, 

Hassan, Mrs L. Hodgson, Lamb, Laurenson, 
Lawrance, Lewing, Mackay, Mitchell, 

Norfolk, Piotrowski, Riaz, Roberts, Stafford, 
Stanley, Stephen and Udall 

 

The Mayor’s Chaplain, the Reverend Diane Cooksey, offered prayers before 
commencement of the formal business of the Council. 

 
1 ELECTION OF MAYOR  

 

Nominations were sought for the position of Mayor. It was proposed by Councillor 
Denham and seconded by Councillor Udall that Councillor Gregson be nominated 

for the position. Both Councillor Denham and Councillor Udall spoke in support of 
the nomination. 
 

The Mayor asked for further nominations. No further nominations were proposed. 
 

On being put to the vote it was agreed and  
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Gregson be elected Mayor for the Municipal 

Year 2022/23. 
 

COUNCILLOR GREGSON IN THE CHAIR 
 

2 MAYOR'S CONSORT/MAYORESS AND PRESENTATION OF BADGE  

 
The Mayor informed the Council that his Mayoress would be his partner, Rachel 

Hall. The Mayor presented her with the Mayoress’s Chain. 
 

3 VOTE OF THANKS TO RETIRING MAYOR  
 
Councillor Mitchell proposed a vote of thanks to the retiring Mayor, Councillor 

Stephen Hodgson, and paid tribute to his work during his year in office on behalf 
of the Council.  

 
4 PRESENTATION OF PAST MAYOR'S BADGE  

 

The Mayor presented Councillor Stephen Hodgson with the Past Mayor’s badge. 
 

5 RESPONSE FROM RETIRING MAYOR  
 
Councillor Stephen Hodgson thanked the Council and summarised the highlights 

of his year in office. He also thanked his wife, Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson, for 
her support as Mayoress, his Chaplains, Diane Cooksey and Rosie Moss, and all 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 17th May 2022 2 

 
 

the Council Officers who had supported him throughout the year, including his 

Sword Bearer, Frank Southam, who was attending his last meeting prior to 
retirement. 

 
6 PRESENTATION OF PAST MAYORESS'S BADGE  

 

Councillor Stephen Hodgson presented his wife, Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson, with 
the past Mayoress’s badge. 

 
7 ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR  

 

Nominations were sought for the position of Deputy Mayor. It was proposed by 
Councillor Stephen and seconded by Councillor Bisset that, due to the nature of 

the Notices of Motion to be considered at the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council 
scheduled to take place immediately following this meeting, a decision be deferred 
and taken at the Extraordinary Meeting. 

 
On being put to the vote it was agreed and 

 
RESOLVED: That the Council agree to defer consideration of the election 
of a Deputy Mayor for the Municipal Year 2022/23 to the Extraordinary 

Meeting of the Council. 
 

8 MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS  
 

Welcome to Newly Elected Members 
The Mayor welcomed Councillors Ali, Cockeram, Cookson, Desayrah, Shafaz Ditta 
and Piotrowski to their first meeting of the Council. 

 
Mayor’s Orator 

The Mayor announced that he would be reviving the office of City Orator, and that 
Mr Ian Craigan will undertake this role. 
 

Mayor’s Charities 
The Mayor announced Onside and Severn Arts as his charities for the year. 

 
The Mayoral Theme for the year 
The Mayor announced that his theme for the year will be tackling mental health 

and wellbeing through a culture of creativity, art and music. 
 

Dates of Key Civic Events 
The Mayor announced the following dates: 
 

5th June - The Mayor’s Big Jubilee Lunch  
18th June - 100th Anniversary of the naming of Gheluvelt Park 

19th June - Civic Service 
23rd September - Inaugural Banquet 
13th November - Remembrance Sunday 

 
Tribute to Frank Southam 

The Mayor paid tribute to Frank Southam, City Sword Bearer who would be 
retiring shortly and was attending his last Council meeting. A thank you event will 
be organised separately and details will follow.  

Page 2



 17th May 2022 3 

 
 

 

Eric Carnall 
The Mayor reported with sadness that Eric Carnall, a former Mace Bearer and 

Mayor's Officer, had recently passed away, aged 95. 
 
Refreshments 

The Mayor invited everyone to join in refreshments in the Lower Hall once the 
meetings had finished. 

 
9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

None. 
 

10 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 29th March 2022 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Mayor. 
 

11 APPOINTMENT OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
 
The Mayor sought nominations for the position of Leader of the Council. It was 

proposed by Councillor Stephen and seconded by Councillor Bisset that a decision 
be deferred and taken at the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council scheduled to 

take place immediately following this meeting. 
 

On being put to the vote it was 
 
RESOLVED: That the Council agree to defer consideration of the election 

to the position of Leader of the Council to the Extraordinary Meeting of 
the Council. 

 
12 APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY LEADER  

 

The Mayor sought nominations for the position of Deputy Leader of the Council. It 
was proposed by Councillor Stephen and seconded by Councillor Bisset that a 

decision be deferred and taken at the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council 
scheduled to take place immediately following this meeting. 
 

On being put to the vote it was 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree to defer consideration of the election 
to the position of Deputy Leader of the Council to the Extraordinary 
Meeting of the Council. 

 
13 POLITICAL BALANCE ON COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES  

 
The Council received the report of the Monitoring Officer seeking Council’s 
approval of the allocation of seats between the political groups for the Municipal 

Year 2022/23. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Bayliss and seconded by Councillor Denham and on 
being put to the vote it was  
 

Page 3



 17th May 2022 4 

 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree the allocation of seats between 

political groups for the Municipal Year 2022/23 as set out in Appendix 1 
of the minutes. 

 
14 APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES 

AND APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRS AND VICE-CHAIRS  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Stephen and seconded by Councillor Bisset that a 

decision be deferred and taken at the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council 
scheduled to take place immediately following this meeting. 
 

On being put to the vote it was 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree to defer consideration of nominations 
from Group Leaders for the appointment of Members to Committees and 
Sub-Committees, and the appointment of Chairs and Vice-Chairs to those 

Committees, to the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council. 
 

15 REPORT OF RETURNING OFFICER  
 
The Council received the report of the Returning Officer that summarised the 

results of the City Council Election held on 5th May 2022. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council note the result of the City Council Election 
held on Thursday, 5th May 2022. 

 
16 REPORT ON COUNCILLORS' ALLOWANCES  

 

In accordance with the Local Authority (Members’ Allowances) Regulations, the 
Council received a report on allowances paid to Members in the financial year 

2021/22. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Council note the allowances paid to Members in the 

financial year 2021/22. 
 

17 PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL  
 
The Council received a schedule of dates for meetings of the Council until June 

2023. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree to note the dates for meetings of the 
Council until the end of June 2023. 
 

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. - 8.00p.m. 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

5th July 2022 

Page 4



 
18 APPENDIX 1  

 

 

Seats 
     

Percentage share (rule D) 
   

  TOTAL CON LAB GREEN LIB-DEM   CON LAB GREEN LIB-DEM Total 

P&R 13 6 4 2 1   46.2 30.8 15.4 7.7 100.0 

Income Gen 5 2 2 1 0   40.0 40.0 20.0 0.0 100.0 

P&GP 7 3 3 1 0   42.9 42.9 14.3 0.0 100.0 

Communities 11 5 4 2 0   45.5 36.4 18.2 0.0 100.0 

Environment 11 5 4 2 0   45.5 36.4 18.2 0.0 100.0 

Health & Wellbeing  11 4 4 2 1   36.4 36.4 18.2 9.1 100.0 

Place & Eco Dev  11 5 4 2 0   45.5 36.4 18.2 0.0 100.0 

Planning 11 5 3 2 1   45.5 27.3 18.2 9.1 100.0 

Licencing  11 4 4 2 1   36.4 36.4 18.2 9.1 100.0 

Audit & Governance 7 3 2 1 1   42.9 28.6 14.3 14.3 100.0 

Standards  7 3 2 1 1   42.9 28.6 14.3 14.3 100.0 

  105 45 36 18 6             

            ACTUAL %  
 

42.9 34.3 17.1 5.7 
      

            TARGET % (rule C) 
 

42.9 34.3 17.1 5.7 
 

42.9 34.3 17.1 5.7 
 

            DIFFERENCE  
 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
       

 

 
 
 

P
age 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 6



EXTRA ORDINARY COUNCIL 

 
17th May 2022 

 
Present:  
 

The Mayor, Councillor Gregson, in the Chair 

 Councillors Agar, Ali, Allcott, Altaf, 
A. Amos, Barnes, Bayliss, Bisset, Cleary, 

Cockeram, Cookson, Cronin, Denham, 
Desayrah, Ditta, Ditta, Geraghty, Gregson, 
Hassan, Mrs L. Hodgson, S. Hodgson, Lamb, 

Laurenson, Lawrance, Lewing, Mackay, 
Mitchell, Norfolk, Piotrowski, Riaz, Roberts, 

Stafford, Stanley, Stephen and Udall 
 

19 Apologies for Absence  

 
None. 

 
20 Declarations of Interest  

 

None. 
 

21 Public Participation  
 
None. 

 
22 Notice of Motion  

 
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion, which had been submitted 
by Councillor Stephen in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8. 

 
The Mayor advised the Council that, should the Notice of Motion be agreed, the 

Notice of Motion which had been proposed by Councillor Denham, could not be 
considered as, in accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution, no resolution or 
decision of the Council shall be rescinded or varied during the period of six 

months after it was passed. 
 

Amendments to the Constitution and Group Leader’s Protocol  
 

Since the introduction of the Committee system, Council has tried to increase the 
involvement of all councillors in decision making. Various changes to the 
Constitution have aimed to provide stability and strategic thinking beyond the 

normal electoral cycle, for Councillors, Council Officers, partners and residents. 
Council believes the Constitution should be sufficiently flexible to better reflect 
multi-party democracy in Worcester. 

 

The Group Leaders Protocol stipulates that it should be reviewed every time 
there is a change in the political composition of the Council. 

 

The Council therefore resolves to: 

 

i Amend article 6. 1a of the constitution so that, in circumstances of No 
Overall Control, two joint leaders of the Council will be elected by Council, 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



 17th May 2022 2 

 
 

one from each of the two largest Political Groups, as set out in Appendix 1 to 

this Motion. 

 

ii Amend the existing Group Leaders Protocol to: a) specify who should 
deputise for the Leader if only one Leader has been appointed; b) simplify 

the rules for appointing Chairs and Vice Chairs of Committees; c) alter the 
rules for appointing the Mayor and Deputy Mayor so that the roles rotate 
amongst all the Political Groups; all as set out in Appendix 2 to this Motion. 

 

iii To authorise the Monitoring Officer to make any other minor consequential 
changes to the Constitution that arise from these changes. 

 

iv   To proceed to make appointments in accordance with these changes. 

 

Appendix 1: Proposed Changes to the Articles 

 

ARTICLE 6 - THE LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL THE 

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

6.1       Election of the Leader of the Council 

 
The Leader of the Council will be a Councillor elected to the position of Leader of 

the Council. The Council will elect a Leader of the Council on an annual basis at 
its Annual meeting. 

 

6.2 Term of Office  

 
The Leader of the Council will hold office until:-  
(a) they resign from the office; or 

(b) they are suspended from being a Councillor or 

(c) they are no longer a Councillor; or 

(d) for one year from the date of election, save that they may be removed from 

office at an earlier date by resolution of the Council. 
 
THE DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 

6.3      Election of the Deputy Leader of the Council 

 
The Deputy Leader of the Council will be a Councillor elected to the position of 
Deputy Leader of the Council. The Council will elect a Deputy Leader of the 

Council on an annual basis at its Annual meeting. 

 

6.4      Term of Office  

 

The Deputy Leader of the Council will hold office until:-  

(a) they resign from the office; or 
(b) they are suspended from being a Councillor or 

(c) they are no longer a Councillor; or 

(d) for one year from the date of election, save that they may be removed from 

office at an earlier date by resolution of the Council. 
 

Page 8



 17th May 2022 3 

 
 

ARTICLE 6A - THE LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL (NO OVERALL 
POLITICAL CONTROL) 
 
THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL (NO OVERALL POLITICAL CONTROL) 
 
6.1A Appointment of the Leader(s) of the Council 
 
In circumstances of no overall political control, the Council will elect two Leaders, 
one from each of the two largest political groups. The Council will elect the two 
joint Leaders of the Council on an annual basis at its Annual meeting. In the event 
that one of the two political groups eligible to nominate a Joint Leader elects not 
to do so, the Council shall elect one Leader only and the other Joint Leader 
position will be vacant. 
 
6.2A Term of Office 
 
In circumstances of no overall political control, each Leader of the Council will hold 
office until:- 
 
(a) they resign from the office; or 
 
(b) they are suspended from being a Councillor or 
 
(c) they are no longer a Councillor; or 
 
(d) for one year from the date of election, save that they may be removed from 
office at an earlier date by resolution of the Council.  
 

Appendix 2: Proposed Changes to Group Leaders Protocol 

 

2. The Leader of the Council 

 

2.1 The Leader of the Council will be appointed annually by Council.  

 

2.2 The Leader(s) of the Council will represent the Council at the 
Worcestershire Leaders’ Board, the Local Enterprise Partnership and other 
external partnerships and boards. 

 

2.3 When the Council is in overall political control, the Leader will be appointed 
from the largest Political Group. 

 

2.4 When there is no overall political control, two Leader will be appointed, one 
from each of the two largest Political Groups. Where for any reason only one 
Leader has been elected instead of two, the Leader may ask the leader of any 
political group to deputise for them on an ad hoc basis when required. 

 

3. Deputy Leader of the Council 

 

3.1 The Deputy Leader of the Council will be appointed annually by Council. 

 

3.2 In the event that the Leader of the Council is unable to attend or chair any 
external body as Leader, then the Deputy will chair or attend instead. 

 

Page 9



 17th May 2022 4 

 
 

3.3 When there is no overall political control, there will be no Deputy Leader. 

 

4. Chairs and Vice Chairs of Committees 

 

4.1 The Chairs and Vice Chairs of all Committees shall be equally responsible 
for agenda setting for their Committee, with equal access to Officers and 
information; all other members of a Committee may request that an item is 
included on the agenda of the Committee; statutory officers have the right to put 
an item on the agenda of any Committee. 

 

4.2 The Chairs and Vice Chairs of Committees will be appointed annually by 
Council in accordance with the following principles: 

 

• The Chair and Vice Chair of each Committee will be from different Political 
Groups; 

 

• There shall be two Vice Chairs of the Policy and Resources Committee, each 
from different Political Groups and different to the Political Group of the Chair; 

 

• The roles of Chair and Vice Chair shall be allocated to Political Groups in 
proportion to the number of seats each Political Group has on the Council, 
subject to the rules on political balance. 

 

5. The Mayor and Deputy Mayor 

 

5.1 The Mayor and Deputy Mayor shall be appointed in accordance with the 
following principles: 

 

• The Mayoralty shall rotate with a right of first refusal on an annual basis 
amongst the Political Groups; 

• The Mayor and the Deputy Mayor shall not be from the same Political Group; 

• The Mayor should normally have served at least one full term of office as a 
councillor; 

• The Mayor should normally have served as the Deputy Mayor in the preceding 
year; 

• The Mayor and Deputy Mayor must be willing to undertake the duties of Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor; 

• Where there is more than one eligible candidate for appointment as Mayor or 
Deputy Mayor, the appointment may be based on seniority in terms of number 
of years served as a councillor. 

 

The proposer, Councillor Stephen, spoke in support of the Motion. The Motion was 
seconded by Councillor Bisset. 

 
Members of the Council proceeded to debate the Motion, following which the 

Motion was put to the vote. In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 7.2 a 
named vote was requested and supported by four Members. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree to: 
 

1. amend article 6. 1a of the constitution so that, in circumstances of No 
Overall Control, two joint leaders of the Council will be elected by 

Page 10



 17th May 2022 5 

 
 

Council, one from each of the two largest Political Groups, as set out 

in Appendix 1 to this Motion. 
 

2. amend the existing Group Leaders Protocol to: a) specify who should 
deputise for the Leader if only one Leader has been appointed; b) 
simplify the rules for appointing Chairs and Vice Chairs of 

Committees; c) alter the rules for appointing the Mayor and Deputy 
Mayor so that the roles rotate amongst all the Political Groups; all as 

set out in Appendix 2 to this Motion. 
 
3. authorise the Monitoring Officer to make any other minor 

consequential changes to the Constitution that arise from these 
changes. 

 
4. proceed to make appointments in accordance with these changes. 
 

Record of Voting: 
 

For: 
Councillors 

Against: 
Councillors 

Abstain: 
Councillors 

Altaf, Amos, Bayliss, 
Bisset, Cleary, 

Cockeram, A. Ditta, 
S. Ditta, Geraghty, 
Hassan, Mrs L. 

Hodgson, S. 
Hodgson, 

Laurenson, Lewing, 
Mackay, Mitchell, 
Piotrowski, Roberts,  

Stafford, Stephen, 
Stanley 

Agar, Ali, Allcott, 
Barnes, Cookson, 

Cronin, Denham, 
Desayrah, Gregson, 
Lamb, Lawrance, 

Norfolk, Riaz, Udall 

 

Total: 21 Total: 14 Total: 0 

 

23 Election of Deputy Mayor  
 

Consideration of this item had been deferred at the Annual Council meeting. 
 
The Council proceeded to consider the appointment of the Deputy Mayor for the 

Municipal Year 2022/23. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Piotrowski and seconded by Councillor Bisset that 
Councillor Stephen be nominated for the position of Deputy Mayor. Both Councillor 
Piotrowski and Councillor Bisset spoke in support of the nomination. 

 
There were no further nominations. On being put to the vote it was agreed and 

 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Stephen be elected as Deputy Mayor for the 

Municipal Year 2022/23. 
 
 

 
 

Page 11



 17th May 2022 6 

 
 

24 Appointment of Joint Leaders of the Council  

 
Consideration of the appointment of a Leader and Deputy Leader had been 

deferred at the Annual Council meeting. 
 
The Council were advised by the Mayor that, pursuant to resolution 1 of minute 

22 above, the Council should now proceed to consider nominations for the 
appointment of two Joint Leaders, one from each of the two largest political 

groups, rather than the appointment of a Leader and Deputy Leader. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Mitchell and seconded by Councillor Hassan that 

Councillor Bayliss be nominated.  
 

There were no further nominations. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 7.2 a named vote was requested and 

supported by four Members. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree that Councillor Bayliss be elected to 
the position of Joint Leader of the Council. 
 

Record of Voting: 
 

For: 
Councillors 

Against: 
Councillors 

Abstain: 
Councillors 

Altaf, Amos, Bayliss, 
Cleary, A. Ditta, S. 

Ditta, Geraghty, 
Hassan, Mrs L. 
Hodgson, S. 

Hodgson, Mackay, 
Mitchell, Roberts,  

Stafford, Stanley 

Agar, Ali, Allcott, 
Barnes, Cookson, 

Cronin, Denham, 
Desayrah, Gregson, 
Lamb, Lawrance, 

Norfolk, Riaz, Udall 

Bisset, Cockeram, 
Laurenson, Lewing, 

Piotrowski, Stephen 

Total: 15 Total: 14 Total: 6 

 
25 Appointment of Members to Committees and Sub-Committees and 

Appointment of Chairs and Vice-Chairs Etc.  
 
Consideration of this item had been deferred at the Annual Council meeting. 

 
The Council received details of nominations from Group Leaders for the 

appointment of Members to Policy Committees, Regulatory Committees, Joint 
Committees and Other Bodies. The Council considered the appointment of Chairs 
and Vice-Chairs to those Committees. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Council approve the appointment of Members to 

Policy Committees, Regulatory Committees, Joint Committees and Other 
Bodies and the appointment of Chairs and Vice-Chairs as set out in 

Appendix 1 of the minutes. 
 
 

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 8.00p.m. 
 

Page 12



 17th May 2022 7 

 
 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

5th July 2022 
 

Page 13



 17th May 2022 8 

 
 

26 APPENDIX 1  

 

Worcester City Council - Membership Schedule 2022/23 
 

Policy Committees 
 

POLICY & RESOURCES - MEMBERSHIP OF 13 – 
Meets 7 times per annum  
 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 6 LABOUR - 4 GREEN - 2 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT - 1 

Councillor Bayliss Councillor Agar Councillor Bisset 

(Chair) 

Councillor Allcott 

Councillor Mrs Lucy 

Hodgson 

Councillor 

Denham (Vice-
Chair) 

Councillor 

Stephen 

 

Councillor Mackay Councillor 
Gregson 

  

Councillor Mitchell Councillor Riaz   

Councillor Stafford    

Councillor Stanley 
(Vice-Chair) 

   

COMMUNITIES – MEMBERSHIP OF 11 – Meets 5 
times per annum  
 

 

CONSERVATIVE – 5 LABOUR - 4 GREEN - 2 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT - 0 

Councillor Cleary(Vice-

Chair) 

Councillor Ali Councillor 

Laurenson 

 

Councillor Shafaz Ditta Councillor 

DeSayrah 

Councillor 

Piotrowski 

 

Councillor Mrs Lucy 

Hodgson 

Councillor Lamb   

Councillor Stephen 

Hodgson 

Councillor Riaz 

(Chair) 

  

Councillor Mackay    

Page 14



 17th May 2022 9 

 
 

 

ENVIRONMENT – MEMBERSHIP OF 11 - Meets 5 
times per annum  
 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 5 LABOUR - 4 GREEN - 2 
 

LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT - 0 

Councillor Altaf Councillor 
Cookson 

Councillor Bisset  

Councillor Cleary Councillor Cronin Councillor Lewing 
(Vice-Chair) 

 

Councillor Hassan Councillor 
Norfolk 

  

Councillor Roberts Councillor Udall   

Councillor Stafford 
(Chair) 

   

HEALTH AND WELLBEING – MEMBERSHIP OF 11 - 

Meets 5 times per annum  
 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 4 LABOUR - 4 GREEN - 2 
 

LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT - 1 

Councillor Shafaz Ditta Councillor Ali Councillor 
Cockeram 

Councillor 
Lawrance 

Councillor Mrs Lucy 
Hodgson  

Councillor 
Denham (Chair) 

Councillor 
Piotrowski 

 

Councillor Stephen 
Hodgson (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor 
Norfolk 

  

Councillor Stanley Councillor Udall   

PLACE & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT– MEMBERSHIP 

OF 11 - Meets 5 times per annum  
 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 5 LABOUR - 4 GREEN - 2 
 

LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT - 0 

Councillor Bayliss Councillor Cronin Councillor 
Laurenson 

 

Councillor Allah Ditta Councillor 
DeSayrah 

Councillor Lewing  

Councillor Geraghty Councillor 
Gregson 

  

Councillor Mrs Lucy 
Hodgson (Chair) 

Councillor 
Norfolk (Vice-

Chair) 

  

Councillor Stanley    

INCOME GENERATION SUB – MEMBERSHIP OF 5 - 
Meets 5 times per annum  

 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 2 LABOUR - 2 GREEN - 1 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT - 0 

Councillor Mackay 

(Vice-Chair) 

Councillor 

DeSayrah 

Councillor 

Stephen 

 

Councillor Mitchell Councillor Riaz 

(Chair) 

  

Page 15



 17th May 2022 10 

 
 

PERSONNEL & GENERAL PURPOSES SUB – 
MEMBERSHIP OF 7 – 4 

Meets 4 times per annum  

 

CONSERVATIVE - 3 LABOUR - 3 GREEN - 1 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT - 0 

Councillor Bayliss Councillor 

Cookson 

Councillor Bisset  

Councillor Mitchell Councillor 

Denham (Vice-
Chair) 

  

Councillor Stanley 
(Chair) 

Councillor Riaz   

 

Page 16



 17th May 2022 11 

 
 

Regulatory Committees 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

PLANNING - MEMBERSHIP OF 11 – Meets 12 times 

per annum  
 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 5 LABOUR - 3 GREEN - 2 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT - 1 

Councillor Amos Councillor Agar 
(Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Bisset Councillor Allcott 

Councillor Cleary Councillor 
Barnes 

Councillor Lewing  

Councillor Shafaz Ditta Councillor 
DeSayrah 

  

Councillor Mitchell 
(Chair) 

   

Councillor Roberts    

LICENSING & ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – 
MEMBERSHIP OF 11 –  

Meets 4 times per annum 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – Meets 12 times per 

annum 

 

CONSERVATIVE - 4 LABOUR - 4 GREEN - 2 

 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT - 1 

Councillor Mrs Lucy 

Hodgson 

Councillor Agar Councillor 

Cockeram 

Councillor 

Lawrance 

Councillor Stephen 

Hodgson 

Councillor 

Barnes 

Councillor 

Stephen (Vice-
Chair) 

 

Councillor Mitchell Councillor Cronin   

Councillor Stafford Councillor Udall 

(Chair) 

  

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE – MEMBERSHIP OF 7  - 

Meets 4 times per annum  

 

CONSERVATIVE - 3 LABOUR - 2 GREEN - 1 
 

LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT - 1 

Councillor Amos 
(Chair) 

Councillor 
Barnes (Vice-

Chair) 

Councillor 
Piotrowski 

Councillor 
Lawrance 

Councillor Bayliss Councillor Lamb   

Councillor Mackay    

STANDARDS – MEMBERSHIP OF 7 (plus up to 3 
Co-opted Members and 4 Parish Council 

Representatives, 2 from each Parish Council) - 
Meets 3 times per annum  

 

CONSERVATIVE - 3 LABOUR - 2 GREEN - 1 
 

LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT - 1 

Councillor Amos Councillor 
Desayrah 

Councillor 
Laurenson 

Councillor Allcott 
(Chair) 

Page 17



 17th May 2022 12 

 
 

Councillor Roberts 
(Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Lamb   

Councillor Stanley    

Independent Members 

Mr Ray Needham  

Parish Council Representatives 

St. Peter the Great Parish  -   Mr Roger Knight 
St. Peter the Great Parish  - Mr John Renshaw 

Warndon Parish   - Mr Dave Carney 
Warndon Parish   - Mrs Dawn Merriman 

 

Other Bodies (Not included in the political balance 
calculations)  
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT 

JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE – MEMBERSHIP OF 
2 –  

Meets 4 times per annum 

 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

Councillor Mrs Lucy 

Hodgson 

Councillor Agar   

WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES 

BOARD – MEMBERSHIP OF 2 –  
Meets 4 times per annum  

 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

Councillor Mitchell Councillor 

Cronin 
  

JOINT CONSULTATIVE & SAFETY COMMITTEE – 

MEMBERSHIP OF 4 -   
Meets 4 times per annum  

 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN LIBERAL 
DEMOCRAT 

Councillor Mrs Lucy 
Hodgson Councillor 

Bayliss 

Councillor 
Cookson  

Councillor 
Denham 

  

 
 

 

Page 18



 

 
 

Report to: Council, 5th July 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director- Planning and Governance 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

Subject: THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND: 
ELECTORAL REVIEW – WARDING ARRANGEMENTS CONSULTATION  

 
1. Recommendation 

 

1.1 That the Council agrees the Warding Arrangements Submission set out in 
 Appendix 1 as its collective response to the initial consultation being 

 undertaken by the Local Government Boundary Commission for England and 
 authorises the Corporate Director - Planning and Governance to submit this 
 document to the Commission, on behalf of the Council. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission (“the Commission”) is undertaking a 
 periodic electoral review of Worcester City Council. The review commenced in 2021 

 and as part of the first stage of the review, the Council made a submission to the 
 Commission in February 2022, as to the number of councillors that Worcester City 

 Council should have. This submission was supported by a large amount of 
 information and data required by the Commission relating to governance 
 arrangements and electorate population forecasts up to 2028. 

2.2 The Council submitted that the number of councillors should remain the same as 

 currently: 35. The Council’s submission stated that a slightly higher number of 
 councillors, between 36 and 39, could also be supported, but that its current 
 number, 35, was preferred. 

2.3 Simultaneously the Council resolved that it should change its electoral cycle from 

 elections by thirds, to whole-Council elections. One consequence of this decision to 
 move to whole-council elections is that, for the purposes of the Commission’s review, 
 the number of councillors representing each ward in the city may be any number 

 from 1 to 4, with 3 councillors typically being the highest number representing each 
 ward. 

2.4 In May 2022 the Commission notified the Council that it is minded to recommend (to 
 HM Government) that the Council size should be 35 councillors and so the 

 Commission’s review has moved to the second stage; to determine revised warding 
 arrangements, based upon 35 councillors representing the district.  

2.5 The initial phase of the Commission’s warding arrangements is a public consultation 
 running from 17 May until 25 July 2022. The Commission has been publicising its 

 review in Worcester and contacting local stakeholders.  

 

Page 19 Agenda Item 8



 

The Commission invites responses either on whole-district basis, or on very 
localised issues, and from organisations as well as individuals and community 

groups. The three main criteria set by the Commission in determining warding 
arrangements are essentially:  

(i) Delivering electoral equality for local voters; 
(ii)  Reflecting the interests and identities of local communities; 

(ii) Promoting effective and convenient local government. 
  

2.6 In response to feedback during this initial consultation phase, the Commission 
expects to publish its proposals for the warding arrangements for Worcester in the 

late Autumn and run a further public consultation on those proposals between 1 
November 2022 and 9 January 2023. Following that, the Commission expects to 
publish its final report on Worcester in March 2023 before submitting its proposals 

into the Parliamentary process. 

2.7 Unlike the previous stage of the Commission’s review, there is no requirement for 
the Council to submit an agreed response to the warding arrangements consultation. 
However, any agreed response which the Council is able to submit, will be helpful for 

the Commission’s review and gives the Council the opportunity to have its say. To 
this end, officers have been working with Members to develop proposals for warding 

arrangements in the district which may be able to achieve consensus support from 
Council Members. 

3. Preferred Option  
 
3.1 The preferred option is to approve the draft Submission which is set out in Appendix 

 1. This has been prepared following discussions with the 4 Political Group Leaders as 
 well as individual workshops with each Political Group on the Council. The 

 Submission attempts to strike a balance between useful levels of detail, where that 
 can be agreed by Members of the Council, and providing high level statements of 

 principle, where detailed implementation cannot be agreed by Members of the 
 Council.  

3.2 It should be noted that individual Members and Political Groups are also at liberty to 

 make their own submissions directly to the Commission. 

3.3 Because the Council operates a committee system of governance and currently has 

 no overall political control, officers propose that any Submission which is put before 
 full Council should have the support of all 4 Political Group Leaders. This is to try to 
 be consistent with the spirit of the Group Leaders protocol in the Constitution and 

 avoid the scenario where a document submitted to the Commission which purports 
 to be a “Council Submission” has only actually received a qualified endorsement 

 through a majority vote at the Council meeting. 

3.4 Overall, through the development of this Submission by officers and Members, there 
 has been a good deal of consensus emerging as to the nature and extent of changes 

 that might be required to adjust warding arrangements to meet the Commission’s  
 three criteria. For example, there appears to be consensus that most wards do not 

 require adjustment and could already be said to meet the Commission’s criteria. 
 Similarly, there appears to be consensus that the best way to the address the 
 electoral inequality in the existing Cathedral ward is to divide this ward into two new 

 wards, each having 2 councillors, with proposals for the potential boundary lines and 
 names for these wards also appearing to achieve consensus.  

Page 20



 

3.5 The issue on which consensus has not been reached between the 4 Political Group 
 Leaders is how to implement the consequential changes which arise from dividing 

 the Cathedral ward into two new wards, particularly the need to release a councillor 
 from another ward (and hence realign that ward) in order to be able to create 2 x 2 
 councillor wards. Therefore, options considered are set out in the Submission, but no 

 commentary given as to relative advantages or disadvantages of these. Similarly, 
 Gorse Hill ward remains below the Commission’s target 10% tolerance for electoral 

 equality, but no commentary is given as to whether and how this is addressed. 

3.6 The Commission has made it clear that as an independent statutory organisation it 
 will review every ward in the district against its criteria and so may reach different or 

 similar conclusions to the Council.  

3.7 Some Members have suggested that the decision to maintain a Council size of 35 

 councillors might be revisited, on the basis that having 36 councillors would enable 
 some more expedient decisions about the warding patterns. This has been referred 

 to in the Submission as an option (noting that Council had voted in support of a 
 number of up to 39, with 35 being the preference). However, it should be noted that 
 the Commission has moved past this stage of its review and may not wish to revisit 

 the question of Council size, if it considers it can apply its statutory criteria 
 effectively to warding patterns with 35 councillors as the recommended size. 

4. Alternative Options Considered 

4.1 As noted above, there are alternative options of not making a Council submission at 
 all or making a submission which is not supported by all 4 Political Groups. These 

 alternative approaches are not recommended for the reasons set out in the main 
 part of the report. 

5. Implications 

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 
 

None identified. 
 

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
 
The legal and governance implications are as set out in the main part of the report. 

This is a review led by an independent statutory organisation, with the Council being 
a participant and consultee in the process. 

 
5.3 Risk Implications 

 

There is a risk that the Commission’s proposals do not accord with what Council 
Members and officers consider would work well for Worcester. This risk is mitigated 

by making a submission which represents the collective view of the Council. The risk 
can be further mitigated by responding to the next phase of consultation, in the 
Autumn. 

 
5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

 
None identified at this stage: if the Commission does ultimately recommend changes 
to the Council’s warding patterns then the Council will need to prepare for these 

changes before, they are adopted. 

Page 21



 

5.5 Equality Implications 
 

No specific implications for equality, diversity and inclusion were identified in the 
preparation of this Submission, except to note that community identities were 
considered at a very localised level by officers and Members when reviewing warding 

arrangements. 
 

5.6 Human Resources Implications 
 

None identified. 

 
5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

 
None identified. 

 

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

The overall objective of the review of warding arrangements is to ensure electoral 

equality, which is intended to have a positive impact on individuals’ satisfaction with 

local government representation. 

 
 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Corporate Director - Planning and 

Governance, 01905 722019 sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: Appendix 1: Draft Council Submission 
   

 

 

Page 22



 

 

 

 

Worcester City Council 

 

Warding Arrangements Submission 

 

Response to LGBCE Review of Worcester 

 

July 2022 

 

  

Page 23 Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 

 

Contents: 

1. Background 

 

2. Methodology 

 

3. Overall Approach 

 

4. Summary of the Council’s proposals 

4.1. Cathedral 

4.2. Warndon Parishes 

4.3. St Stephen / Rainbow Hill 

4.4. Other Wards 

 

5. Other Options considered 

5.1. Option 1 

5.2. Option 2 

5.3. Option 3 

5.4. Option 4 

 

6. Detailed ward-by-ward proposals  

  

Page 24



 

 

 

 

1. Background 

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE, The 

Commission) identified Worcester City Council as a local authority that requires a 

review of its electoral arrangements. The last review was completed in 2002. 

There is an evident level of electoral imbalance in two areas of the city which 

breach the acceptable ‘levels of equality’ endorsed by the LGBCE. This electoral 

inequality scenario becomes more acute when taking into account the electorate 

population forecast growth up to 2028 (the Commission’s target date). 

The review commenced in late 2021 and as part of the first stage of the review, 

the Council made a submission to the Commission in February 2022, as to the 

number of councillors that Worcester City Council should have. The Council 

submitted that the number of councillors should remain at 35. Simultaneously 

the Council resolved that it should change its electoral cycle from elections by 

thirds, to whole-Council elections.  

One consequence of this decision to move to whole-council elections is that, for 

the purposes of the Commission’s review, the number of councillors representing 

each ward in the city may be any number from 1 to 4, with 3 councillors 

typically being the highest number representing each ward. 

The Commission has advised that it is minded to recommend that the Council 

size should be 35 councillors and so the review has moved to the second stage; 

to determine revised warding arrangements for the district, based upon 35 

councillors.  

This document sets out the Council’s submission for a revised warding pattern 

for the district of Worcester, giving due consideration to the three main criteria 

set by the Commission in determining warding arrangements:  

1. Delivering electoral equality for local voters  

2. Reflecting the interests and identities of local communities  

3. Promoting effective and convenient local government 

 

The Council considers that its proposal meets the criteria as set by the 

Commission.  

The attached proposals are supported by all four of the Political Group Leaders.  

It is understood that Political Groups and individual Councillors may also submit 

their own comments to the Commission. 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

2. Methodology 

The information considered by the Council in the preparation of its submission 

comprised: 

(i) Electorate forecast for 2028, taking into account new developments 

in the district; 

(ii) Target average number of electors per councillor, including 

tolerance levels up to 10% either side of 0 (where 0 = perfect 

elector equality); 

(iii) Digital maps enabled by the use of specialist software, showing 

proposed warding patterns highlighting boundaries, local features, 

street names and overlaid with locations of planned development 

and electorate ratios per councillor taking account of electorate 

forecast for 2028; 

(iv) Local knowledge of councillors and officers of the character and 

identity of existing wards and their constraints and challenges. 

Initial proposals were considered by the 4 Political Group Leaders to discuss the 

Commission’s criteria and the guiding principles that might enable officers and 

councillors to develop a response on behalf of the Council which could achieve 

consensus.  

Following that, individual workshops were held with councillors from each of the 

4 Political Groups, and additional suggestions to the warding patterns were 

received. These were duly considered by officers to ensure they met the 

requirements of the Commission and were technically sound.  

A composite set of draft proposals, including three main options and other 

variants, were then discussed with the 4 Political Group Leaders.  

3. Overall Approach 

The Council operates a Committee system and there is currently no overall 

political control. The 4 Political Group Leaders agreed that only proposals that 

they all supported would be recommended to full Council as the preferred option 

and voted on.  

The 4 Political Group Leaders also agreed that were there was not consensus 

that the range of options discussed should be shared with the Commission. 

Individual Political Groups may choose to make their own submissions to 

supplement the Council’s submission and explain their individual perspectives 

There is a consensus that the majority of wards work well, providing electoral 

equality (electors per Councillor), upholding the interests and identities of 

communities, and supporting effective and convenient local government. 

Changes are therefore only proposed where there is significant electoral 

inequality – namely in Cathedral (too large for three Councillors) and the 

Warndon Parish wards (need to be rebalanced between North and South). 

Page 26



 

 

Whilst this requires an additional Councillor to facilitate the proposals for 

Cathedral Ward the Council has not reached a consensus on how to generate 

this additional Councillor, although a number of options have been discussed. 

 

4. Summary of the Council’s proposals 

4.1 Cathedral Ward  

In order to address the oversized Cathedral ward, it is proposed that the ward is 

split into two wards with two Councillors in each. The proposed names for these 

two wards are City Centre Ward and Fort Royal Ward.  

Reducing the size of Cathedral by “trimming around the edges” is not practicable 

due to the natural boundaries of river and railway and would mean multiple 

changes to create artificial boundaries through established communities. 

It is also proposed to move a small number of properties (55) from Nunnery 

Ward to Fort Royal Ward. These properties are an extension to a development at 

Larkhill / Perrywood Walk already within Cathedral Ward and can only be 

accessed by road from Cathedral (Fort Royal).  

4.2 Warndon Parish Wards 

Warndon Parish North and South Wards would benefit from balancing elector 

numbers to achieve electoral equality and this can be done by amending the 

boundary between the two parish wards, moving 54 properties (102 electors) 

into Warndon Parish North. It is also noted that the ward boundary is not 

entirely aligned with the Parish Boundary to the South and that the LGBCE may 

wish to extend the Parish Boundary to align with Warndon Parish South Ward. 

4.3 St Stephen Ward / Rainbow Hill Ward 

A small number of properties to the South of St Stephen Ward are disconnected 

from the rest of the ward by the 68 hectare Astwood Cemetery and associate 

more closely with the community within the North of Rainbow Hill Ward. It is 

proposed that these properties (142) are moved into Rainbow Hill. 

4.4 Other Wards 

With the exception of the proposals at 4.1-4.3, the Council proposes no changes 

to ward boundaries. Detailed proposals and rationale for each ward are at 

Appendix 1 to this report. 

 

 

5. Other options considered 

To create a Councillor to facilitate the agreed proposal for an additional 

Councillor in Cathedral Ward (the proposed Fort Royal and City Centre) a 

number of options to make amendments to other wards have been considered 

by Members in detail.  

Page 27



 

 

 

These options are outlined below but do not constitute a proposal by the Council 

as there is not consensus support for any of them. 

 

5.1 Option 1 

Merge Warndon and Gorse Hill into a three Councillor ward, freeing up a 

Councillor. To balance ward sizes a number of properties to the South of Gorse 

Hill Ward would move into Nunnery. 

5.2 Option 2 

Deleting Rainbow Hill Ward (which frees up two Councillors) and redistributing 

the properties between Arboretum (which becomes a three Councillor Ward), 

Gorse Hill (which becomes a three Councillor Ward) and Warndon.  

To balance the electoral numbers and provide the additional Councillor required 

for Gorse Hill, Nunnery could be reduced in size and become a two Councillor 

ward.  

5.3 Option 3 

Deleting Rainbow Hill Ward (which frees up two Councillors) and redistributing 

the properties between Arboretum (which becomes a three Councillor ward), 

Gorse Hill, Warndon and Nunnery wards. 

5.4 Option 4 

In February 2022 the Council indicated to the LGBCE that its preferred number 

of Councillors was 35, which is the current number. The submission made to the 

LGBCE also confirmed the Council would support a number of Councillors 

between 35 and 39, with 35 preferred as it is the status quo. The LGBCE have 

indicated that they are minded to recommend 35 Councillors.  

Whilst the Council has reached a consensus on changes to remedy the electoral 

inequality in the City, there is no consensus on how to free up the additional 

Councillor required to split Cathedral Ward. An option would be to increase the 

Council to 36 Councillors which would address the issue of electoral inequality. 

Our modelling suggests that, without further amendments, this would leave 

Gorse Hill slightly too small at 13% under perfect electoral equality. We have not 

modelled addressing this in detail, it could be mitigated by moving a total of 

400-600 electors from two or three of the neighbouring wards of Warndon, 

Nunnery and Rainbow Hill into Gorse Hill. 

  

Page 28



 

 

 

Appendix 1: Detailed ward-by ward proposals 

 

 

City Wide 

Note: Fort Royal and City Centre now both 2 Councillor Wards 

 

  

Page 29



 

 

Arboretum 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 

2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 

electoral 
equality 

5018 (on 
current 

boundaries) 
 

2 +6% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 
 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 
existing ward. 

 
Arboretum is currently a mid-sized ward with two 

councillors, largely residential with some green 
space centred on the canal, and Gheluvelt Park to 
the North 

   
The community facilities consist of Gheluvelt 

Park, playing fields next to the canal, allotments, 
and local shops along the Tything. 
 

The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 
satisfactory and meets the LGBCE objectives. 

 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

None 

 

Page 30



 

 

 

Page 31



 

 

Battenhall 

 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 
2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 
electoral 

equality 

4540 

 

2 -4% 

 

Rationale for ward proposals 
 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 
existing ward. 
 

Battenhall is a well-established ward to the 
Southeast of the District, with Battenhall being a 

widely used name to describe the heart of the 
ward. Its boundaries largely follow the St Peter’s 
Parish ward boundary and two major arteries into 

the city, Bath Road and London Road. 
  

It has four schools, two allotment sites, and other 
local facilities. 

 
There are good road and active travel links within 
the ward. 
  

The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 
satisfactory and meets the LGBCE objectives. 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

None 
 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

 

 

Bedwardine 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 

2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 

electoral 
equality 

7527 
 

3 +6% 

 

Rationale for ward proposals 
 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 
existing Ward. 

 
Bedwardine is a well-established ward with three 

Councillors. 
   
The ward has distinct boundaries formed by the 

River Severn, the A44, and the city boundary. 
 

The community facilities consist of a primary 
school, a community run swimming pool, a 
number of small shops, and numerous green 

spaces. 
 

The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE 
objectives. 

 
Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

None 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

 

Page 35



 

 

City Centre 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4826 
 

2 +2% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing ward boundary to the Western, Southern 
and Northern edges.  

 
To the East the boundary that divides the new 
City Centre and Fort Royal wards runs along the 

natural breaks of City Walls Road (a dual 
carriageway) and the canal. 

This new ward will include the three communities 
centred around Diglis, the city centre, and 
Britannia Square. 

 
The ward will have a wide range of facilities and 

excellent links for travel. 
 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 

satisfactory and follows LGBCE 
objectives. 

 
 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

To split Cathedral Ward in two along City Walls 
Road and the canal, creating a new two 
Councillor ward. 

 

 

Page 36



 

 

Page 37



 

 

Claines 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 

2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 

electoral 
equality 

6909 
 

3 -3% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing Ward.  
 
The ward covers four communities of Northwick, 

Barbourne, and the more sparsely populated 
areas of Claines and Blackpole.  

 
Distinct and identifiable boundaries exist being 
Gheluvelt Park, the A38, the canal, and the 

railway. 
 

The ward benefits from green spaces covering 
Perdiswell Park, two leisure centres, a golf 
course, and an allotment site. There are a 

number of local shops across the ward. 
 

The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE  
objectives.  

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

None 
 

 

 

 

Page 38



 

 

Page 39



 

 

Fort Royal 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 

2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 

electoral 
equality 

4954 
 

2 +4% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing ward boundary to the Eastern, Southern 
and Northern edges.  
 

To the West the boundary that divides the new 
City Centre and Fort Royal wards runs along the 

natural breaks of City Walls Road (a dual 
carriageway) and the canal. 
This new ward will include the established 

communities centred around Wylds Lane & 
Stanley Road, Lowesmoor & Shrub Hill, and the 

Woolhope & Bolston area. 
 
The ward will have a wide range of community 

facilities as well as having access to the city 
centre and excellent links for travel. 

Facilities include two community centres, several 
places of worship, two primary schools, and Fort 
Royal Park. 

 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 

satisfactory and follows LGBCE 
objectives. 
 

 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

To split Cathedral Ward in two along City Walls 

Road and the canal, creating a new two 
Councillor ward. 

 

 

Page 40



 

 

  

Page 41



 

 

Gorse Hill 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4008  2 -15% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 
 

 
The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing Ward.  
 

Gorse Hill is an established ward that covers a 
densely populated residential area. 
It is served by local facilities including local shops 

and the Elbury Mount & Gorse Hill Nature 
reserve.  

 
The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE  

objectives. 
 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

None 
 

 

Page 42



 

 

Page 43



 

 

Nunnery 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

6999 (with 
minor 

boundary 
change) 

3 -2% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 
existing Ward with the exception of a small 
change at Larkhill. This amendment will move 55 

properties (70 electors) in Liburne Close &  
Cranbourne Grove into the new Fort Royal Ward. 

These properties cannot be accessed by road 
from Nunnery ward and so are better served by 
being placed in Fort Royal. 

 
Nunnery is an established ward that includes 

communities at Ronkswood, Spetchley Road and 
lower Newtown Road. These communities are 
located around the green spaces of Perry Wood 

and Nunnery Wood (Worcester Woods Country 
Park). 

It is served by local facilities including schools, a 
community centre, a leisure centre and a range 
of well located shops. 

 
The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 

satisfactory and follows LGBCE  
objectives. 
 

 
 

 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

None 

 

 

 

Page 44



 

 

Page 45



 

 

Rainbow Hill 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 

2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 

electoral 
equality 

4554 2 -4% 

 

Rationale for ward proposals 
 

 
The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing Ward with the exception of a small 
change to include properties at Green Lane and 
Tintern Avenue that are currently in St Stephen. 

Properties on the Northern side of Green Lane, 
and those at Tintern Avenue are separated from 

the rest of St Stephen by the 68-acre Astwood 
Cemetery and are more closely linked to the 
neighbouring community in Green Lane. This 

amendment will move 142 properties (256 
electors) into Rainbow Hill. 

 
Rainbow Hill is an established ward that includes 
communities surrounding the well-used King 

George V playing fields. 
It is served by a community centre, local shops, 

and good links to facilities in neighbouring areas. 
 
The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 

satisfactory and follows LGBCE  
objectives. 

 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

Properties on the North side of Green Lane and in 

Tintern Avenue will be moved from St Stephen 
into Rainbow Hill. 
 

Page 46



 

 

 

Page 47



 

 

St Clement 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4614 
 

2 -3% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing Ward. 
 

St. Clement is a well-established ward with two 
Councillors.  
 

The River Severn and Oldbury Road provide a 
distinct and identifiable boundary on three sides 

of the ward.  
 
The majority of the University of Worcester sites 

and student accommodation are located within 
the ward.    

 
The electoral equality of the proposed ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE 

objectives.  

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

None 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

Page 49



 

 

St John 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

6642 
 

3 +7% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing Ward. 
 

St John is a well-established ward centred on the 
retail area known locally as the “village in the 
city”.  

  
The ward includes the whole of the Dines Green 

estate which is a distinctly identifiable 
community.   
 

The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE 

objectives. 
 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

None 
 

 

Page 50



 

 

Page 51



 

 

St Peter’s Parish 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4722 
 

2 0% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing Ward. It is also coterminous with the St 
Peter’s Parish Boundary 

 
St Peter’s Parish is a well-established ward that 
reflects a self-contained Parish community. 

 
It lies to the south of the city and is bounded by 

the southern bypass and the River Severn. 
 
The ward benefits from a range of local shops 

and facilities including St Peter’s Village Hall, St 
Peter’s Baptist Church and a major supermarket.  

 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE 

objectives. 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

None 

 

 

Page 52



 

 

  

Page 53



 

 

St Stephen 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4324 (with 
minor 

boundary 
change) 

 

2 -9% 

 

Rationale for ward proposals 
 

 
The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 
existing Ward with the exception of a small 

change to exclude properties at Green Lane and 
Tintern Avenue. This amendment will move 142 

properties (256 electors) into Rainbow Hill. 
Properties on the Northern side of Green Lane, 
and those at Tintern Avenue are separated from 

the rest of St Stephen by the 68-acre Astwood 
Cemetery and are more closely linked to the 

neighbouring community in Rainbow Hill Ward. 
 
The ward will largely follow the natural 

boundaries of the railway line, Astwood Cemetery 
and the Droitwich Road. It comprises two main 

areas, Astwood and the Blanquette’s Estate. 
 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 

satisfactory and follows LGBCE 
objectives. 

 
 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

Properties on the Northern side of Green Lane, 
and those at Tintern Avenue will be removed 
from St Stephen. 

 

 

Page 54



 

 

  

Page 55



 

 

Warndon 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4168 (on 
current 

boundaries) 

2 -12% 

 

Rationale for ward proposals 
 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 
existing ward. 

 
Warndon is a well-established ward either side of 
the central spine of Windermere Drive. The ward 

is served by a community centre, sports and 
social club, two primary schools and both a major 

supermarket and local shopping precinct. 
 
The ward is bounded to the North and East by 

Warndon Parish and to the West by the railway 
line. 

 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE 

objectives. 
 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

None 
 

 

Page 56



 

 

  

Page 57



 

 

Warndon Parish North 

 

 

Forecast 

electorate in 
2028 

Number of 

councillors 

Variance from 

perfect 
electoral 
equality 

4324 
 

2 -9% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing ward with the exception of a small 
adjustment to the boundary with Warndon Parish 

South to achieve electoral equality. This 
amendment will move 54 properties (102 
electors) into Warndon Parish North. 

 
The ward is well established as half of the Parish 

Council area, and identifies strongly as Warndon 
Villages. 
 

There are excellent pedway and road links to 
local facilities at Lyppard Grange (just into 

Warndon Parish South), which include a 
community centre and local shops as well as a 
major supermarket and school. 

 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 

satisfactory and follows LGBCE 
objectives. 
 

 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 

 

Move the North-South Ward boundary to include 

Quisters and Turbary Avenue in Warndon Parish 
North. 

 

 

Page 58



 

 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

 

Warndon Parish South 

 

 

Forecast 
electorate in 

2028 

Number of 
councillors 

Variance from 
perfect 

electoral 
equality 

4860 
 

2 +2% 

 
Rationale for ward proposals 

 

The proposed ward will be coterminous with the 

existing ward with the exception of a small 
adjustment to the boundary with Warndon Parish 
North to achieve electoral equality. This 

amendment will move 54 properties (102 
electors) into Warndon Parish North. 

 
The ward is well established as half of the Parish 
Council area, and identifies strongly as Warndon 

Villages. 
 

There are excellent pedway and road links within 
the ward to local facilities at Lyppard Grange, 
which include a community centre and local 

shops as well as a major supermarket and 
school. 

 
The electoral equality of the proposed Ward is 
satisfactory and follows LGBCE 

objectives. 
 

Changes from existing ward arrangements 
 

Move the North-South Ward boundary to include 
Quisters and Turbary Avenue in Warndon Parish 

North. 

Page 60



 

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Council, 5th July 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director- Planning and Governance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Subject: AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 

1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Council approves, with immediate effect, the amendments to the 

 Constitution set out in this report and authorises the Corporate Director - 
 Planning and Governance to make the necessary drafting changes to the 

 Constitution. 
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 Periodically, officers or Members identify matters which are considered to be 

established constitutional arrangements at the Council, but which are not reflected 
accurately in the Council’s written document. Equally there are occasions where 
minor amendments to the Constitution are proposed by officers or Members to 

improve operational governance arrangements.  
 

2.2 While the Corporate Director- Planning and Governance (as Monitoring Officer) does 
have authority to make minor amendments to the Constitution without referral to 
Council, any amendments which require a policy decision should be referred to a 

meeting of the Council for consideration.  
 

2.3 A set of proposed amendments, listed below, have been discussed with the 4 Political 

Group Leaders who are in support of the changes. Further consultees include the 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Income Generation Sub-Committee (in relation to the 

potential name change of the Sub-Committee) and the Chair of the Standards 
Committee (who is affected by the current restriction in the Articles as set out 
below). 

 
3. Preferred Option  

 
3.1 The preferred option is to make the amendments set out below in to provide clarity 

on a number of points where the Constitution does not reflect the Council’s preferred 

operating arrangements. The amendments are: 

Issue Proposed amendment 

The Articles (para 9.1) stipulate 
that a Political Group Leader should 

not be a member of the Standards 
Committee. However, the Corporate 

Director- Planning and Governance 
advises that, in terms of how 

Delete this provision in the Articles 
so that there is no restriction on 

Political Group Leaders being 
members of, or Chair/Vice Chair of, 

Standards Committee. 

Page 63 Agenda Item 9



 

Standards matters are managed at 
the Council, there is no legal or 

governance reason to prevent a 
Political Group Leader from being a 

participant in Standards Committee. 

Name of the Income Generation 

Sub-Committee does not fully 
capture its purpose/remit bearing in 
mind its role in the scrutiny of fees 

and management of income and the 
constraints on Council investment 

activity. 

Change name to: Income 

Management Sub-Committee. 

Terms of reference for Joint 

Consultative and Safety Committee 
(“JCSC”) stipulate that the 
Managing Director shall be the 

Chair instead of a Member, which is 
not consistent with other Member 

meetings. 

Specify in Terms of Reference for 

JCSC that the Chair will be a Member 
appointed by Council and delete 
corresponding reference to Managing 

Director as the Chair. 

The Constitution does not codify the 

established convention that 
Worcester City Council’s nomination 
for Chair/Vice Chair of Joint 

Advisory Panel (“JAP”) on rotation, 
should be the Member who is Chair 

of the Place and Economic 
Development Committee. 

Add the Terms of Reference for JAP 

into the Constitution and clarify that 
the Chair of Place and Economic 
Development shall be the Council’s 

nominee for Chair/Vice Chair of JAP, 
on rotation with the other South 

Worcestershire Councils. 

 

4. Alternative Options Considered 
 

4.1 It is possible to continue to operate with none of the amendments adopted. 
However, in the case of the Standards Committee membership, this is problematic 

for the Council bearing in mind Members’ appointments to Committee. Council has 
voted to appoint Political Group Leaders to the Standards Committee for the past 2 
years, for example. If the Articles are not amended, then arguably the membership 

of the Standards Committee will need be reviewed. 

5. Implications 

 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

 

None identified. 
 

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
 

The implications are as set out in the main part of the report. 
 

5.3 Risk Implications 

 

Page 64



 

There is a risk not addressing the anomaly between established constitutional 
conventions and what the text actually says, could lead to a greater risk of legal 

challenge if a particular decision was considered by any interested party to be 
defective. 
 

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
 

None identified. 
 

5.5 Equality Implications 

 
None identified. 

 
5.6 Human Resources Implications 

 
None identified. 
 

5.7 Health and Safety Implications 
 

None identified. 
 

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

 

None identified. 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Corporate Director - Planning and 

Governance, 01905 722019 sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk 

Background Papers: None  
 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Council, 5th July 2022 
 

Report of: Chair of Policy and Resources Committee 
 

 
Subject: REFERRAL REPORT FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 24TH 

MAY 2022 – TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Council receives the Treasury Management Annual Report 

2021/22. 

2. Background 

 
2.1 At the Policy and Resources Committee meeting on 24th May 2022 it was agreed that 

the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2021/22 be referred for information to 

full Council. 
 

2.2 The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the 
Public Services (2009).  The Code stipulates that Council should receive regular 
treasury management reports, including an annual review report after the close of 

the year. 
 

3. Information  
 
3.1 The full Committee report is attached (Appendix 1). 

 
 

 
Ward(s):   All Wards 
Contact Officer: Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance Tel: 01905 722007; Email: 

mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: None  

  
 
 

  

Page 67 Agenda Item 10a



This page is intentionally left blank



 1  

 

 
 

Report to: Policy and Resources Committee, 24th May 2022 
 

Report of: Head of Finance 
 

 
Subject: TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT – 2021/22 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee note the details included within the Treasury 
Management Annual Report for 2021/22; and 

 
1.2 That the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2021/22 is referred to full 

Council for information, in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code. 

2. Introduction 

 
2.1  In February 2010 the Council formally adopted the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of 
Practice (the CIPFA code) which requires the Council to approve treasury 
management semi-annual and annual reports. 

2.2 The Council’s treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was approved by Council 
on 23rd February 2021. The Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of 

money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds 
and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, 
monitoring and control of risk remains central to the Council’s treasury management 

strategy.   
 

2.3  Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the 
Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 edition (the CIPFA code) which requires the 

Council to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial 
year and, as a minimum, a semi-annual and annual treasury outturn report. The 

report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
have regard to the CIPFA Code. 

 

3. Local Context 
 

3.1 On 31st March 2022, the Council had net investments of £8.7m arising from its 
revenue and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow for 
capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), whilst 

usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources available for 
investment. These factors are summarised in Table 1 below. 

   
 

Page 69 Agenda Item 10a
Appendix 1



 2  

 

Table 1 : Balance Sheet Summary 

 31.03.21 

Actual 

£m 

Movement 

£m 

31.03.22 

Actual 

General Fund CFR 

 

28.3 (0.7) 27.6 

Less: External Borrowing 

 

(20.1) 1.3 (18.8) 

Internal Borrowing 8.2 0.6 8.8 

Less: Usable reserves 

 

(29.4) 6.5 (22.9) 

Less: Working capital 

 

4.4 (17.8) (13.4) 

Treasury Investments 16.8 10.7 27.5 

 
3.2 Lower interest rates have lowered the cost of short-term temporary loans and 

investment returns from cash assets that can be used in lieu of borrowing. The 

Council pursued its strategy of keeping borrowing and investments below their 
underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, in order to reduce risk 

and keep interest costs low.  
 

3.3 The treasury management position as at 31st March 2022 and the change during the 
year is shown in table 2 below. 

 

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary 

 31.03.21 

Actual 

£m 

Movement 

£m 

31.03.22 

Actual 

£m 

Long-term borrowing 

 

20.1 (1.3) 18.8 

Short-term borrowing 

 

Nil Nil Nil 

Total borrowing 20.1 (1.3) 18.8 

Long-term investments (2.7) (0.5) (3.2) 

Short-term investments 

 

(15.0) (9.5) (24.5) 

Cash and cash equivalents 0.9 (0.7) 0.2 

Total investments 

 

(16.8) (10.7) (27.5) 

Net investments 3.3 (12.0) (8.7) 

 

4. Revised CIPFA Codes, Updated PWLB Lending Guidance & Borrowing Update 
 

4.1 In August 2021, HM Treasury significantly revised guidance for the PWLB lending 

facility with more detail and 12 examples of permitted and prohibited use of PWLB 
loans. Councils that are purchasing or intending to purchase investment assets 

primarily for yield will not be able to access the PWLB except to refinance existing 
loans or externalise internal borrowing. Acceptable use of PWLB borrowing includes 

Page 70



 3  

 

service delivery, housing, regeneration, preventative action, refinancing and treasury 
management. 

 
4.2 CIPFA published its revised Prudential Code for Capital Finance and Treasury 

Management Code on 20th December 2021. The key changes in the two codes are 

around permitted reasons to borrow, knowledge and skills, and the management of 
non-treasury investments. The principles of the Prudential Code took immediate 

effect although Councils can defer introducing the revised reporting requirements 
until the 2023/24 financial year. 

 

4.3 To comply with the Prudential Code, Councils must not borrow to invest primarily for 
financial return. This Code also states that it is not prudent for Councils to make 

investment or spending decision that will increase the CFR unless directly and 
primarily related to the functions of the Council. Existing commercial investments are 

not required to be sold; however, Councils with existing commercial investments 
who expect to need to borrow should review the options for exiting these 
investments.  

 
4.4 Borrowing is permitted for cashflow management, interest rate risk management, to 

refinance current borrowing and to adjust levels of internal borrowing. Borrowing to 
refinance capital expenditure primarily related to the delivery of a local authority’s 
function but where a financial return is also expected is allowed, provided that 

financial return is not the primary reason for the expenditure.  The changes align the 
CIPFA Prudential Code with the PWLB lending rules. 

 
4.5 Unlike the Prudential Code, there is no mention of the date of initial application in 

the Treasury Management Code. The TM Code now includes extensive additional 

requirements for service and commercial investments, far beyond those in the 2017 
version. The Council will follow the same process as the Prudential Code, i.e. 

delaying changes in reporting requirements to the 2023/24 financial year.   
 
5. Borrowing Strategy 

 
5.1 At 31st March 2022 the Council held £18.8m of loans as part of its strategy for 

funding previous years’ capital programmes. Outstanding loans on 31st March are 
summarised in Table 3 below. 

 

Table 3: Borrowing Position 

 31.03.21 

Actual 

£m 

Movement 

£m 

31.03.22 

Actual 

£m 

Public Works Loan Board 

 

14.989 (1.255) 13.734 

Banks (LOBO) 

 

5.072 Nil 5.072 

Banks (fixed-term) Nil Nil Nil 

Local authorities (long-term) Nil Nil Nil 

Local authorities (short-term) 

 

Nil Nil Nil 

Total borrowing 

 

20.061 (1.255) 18.806 

Page 71



 4  

 

 
5.2 The Council’s external loans are a £5m Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO) loan 

and £13.734m of Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) loans. The LOBO was taken out 
for a period of 50 years from the 3rd December 2004.  

 

5.3 The Council’s approval for the building of Perdiswell Swimming Pool was for funding 
of £10.4m which included external borrowing of £6.2m. During 2020/21 the 

Council’s cashflow position and increasing CFR, due to the capital programme, 
necessitated taking out a further portion of external borrowing. Therefore a £6.0m 
PWLB Annuity loan was borrowed for a period of 10 years from April 2020. The 

principal repaid on this loan during 2021/22 was £554,784.  
 

5.4 Subsequently following purchases of property from the Property Development Fund, 
the Council took out a further PWLB Annuity loan in March 2021 of £7.0m, also for a 

period of 10 years. The principal repaid on this loan during 2021/22 was £661,404. 
The Council will continue to only consider externally borrowing and incurring interest 
costs when necessary, as this is the most prudent approach. In addition, during 

2021/22 a PWLB maturity loan to the value of £33,210 was allowed to mature 
without replacement. 

 
5.5 The Council’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low 

risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over 

the period for which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should 
the Council’s long-term plans change, being a secondary objective.  

 
5.6 During 2021/22, PWLB funding margins have lurched quite substantially and there 

remains a strong argument for diversifying funding sources, particularly if rates can 

be achieved on alternatives which are below gilt yields plus 0.80%. The Council will 
evaluate and pursue these lower cost solutions and opportunities with its advisor 

Arlingclose. 
 
5.7 LOBO loans: The Council continues to hold one £5m LOBO (Lender’s Option 

Borrower’s Option) loan where the lender has the option to propose an increase in 
the interest rate at set dates, following which the Council has the option to either 

accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost.  The lender did not 
exercise their option during the year and the rate remains at 4.50%. The likelihood 
of the option being taken remains extremely low in the current interest rate 

environment. The Council has approved a strategy for the replacement of the LOBO 
loan in the event that the lender exercises their option and increases the interest 

rate. The agreed action, in this event, is to replace with a shorter dated loan and 
keep the rate as low as possible bearing in mind the Financing Requirement 
contained in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy (Prudential Borrowing 

Limits).  
 

5.8 The interest payable in 2021/22 on existing loans was £513k (2020/21: £447k). This 
increase was due to the additional PWLB borrowing as stated at paragraph 5.4. The 
budget is set to be £527k in 2022/23. 

 
5.9 The long-term interest rates on offer are monitored on a daily basis. The latest 

capital programme 2022-27 which was approved by Council on 23 February 2022 
includes significant borrowing for the Future High Streets Fund project, therefore as 

spend is committed towards this, further external borrowing may be required during 
2022/23 and future years. 

Page 72



 5  

 

 
5.10 The Council approved its Authorised Limit in 2021/22 for external debt at £49.0m. 

The approved Operational Limit was £43.5m. The Operational Limit is calculated on 
the same basis as the Authorised Limit but differs in that it excludes short term 
borrowing. The Council’s external debt as at 31st March 2022 was £18.8m which is 

within the limits set in the Treasury Management Strategy. 
 

6. Investments 
 
6.1 The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with the institutions listed 

in the Council’s approved lending list. The Council invests its short-term core cash 
for a range of periods from overnight to 365 days, dependent on the Council’s cash 

flows, its interest rate view and the interest rates on offer.  
 

6.2 The Council currently invests in four types of instrument - Fixed Term Deposits, 
Instant Access Deposits, Certificates of Deposit and Money Market Funds. On advice 
from our treasury advisors Arlingclose we do not currently invest with Building 

Societies. The Council plans to continue to invest mainly in Money Market Funds and 
with other Local Authorities during 2022/23 as these both offer high levels of 

security and provide competitive rates of return. The Council diversified its portfolio 
at the end of April 2018 by placing a £3m longer-term investment with the CCLA 
Property Fund with a recommended time horizon of greater than 5 years. 

 

6.3 The Council’s average investment level for the year (or equated value) was £31.7m 
(2020/21: £16.5m). This increase is due to the Council receiving large amounts of 

Covid-related grants from central government during 2021/22, some of which were 
distributed out to businesses and individuals during the course of the year and some 
retained by the Council. The annual return earned on short-term investments was 

0.07% (2020/21: 0.07%) which is approximately 0.07% below the benchmark 
SONIA rate (Sterling Overnight Index Average) for the year which was 0.14%. This 

is due to the majority of the Council’s cash being kept liquid and not placed out for 
periods longer than 3 months. Base rate was 0.10% for the majority of the financial 
year until mid-December before rising three times to 0.75% by the end of March. 

The longer-term Property Fund investment achieved an annual return of 3.47%. 
 

6.4 The Council achieved £20,811 of interest from its short-term investments in 2021/22 
(2020/21: £9,650) and £104,303 from its long-term investment (2020/21: 
£117,498). 

 
6.5 It should be noted that the return on investments has been severely suppressed for 

the past 14 years. For comparison, in 2007/08 the interest rate was in excess of 5% 
and the annual interest earned was £727,000. This is in main due to the economic 
crash of 2008/09 and the effect of the government scheme called ‘Funding for 

Lending’ launched in July 2012 and ending early in 2018. This caused a flood of 
cheap credit to be made available to banks which then resulted in rates falling 

further. These rates continued at very low levels during 2021/22 as banks continued 
to strengthen their balance sheet positions in response to the European banking 
regulation Basel III causing their appetite for cash to remain low. Subsequently 

Covid-19 caused a further lowering of rates in March 2020 to almost zero. More 
recently there are signs that investment rates are beginning to rise again. Further 

background on the economic conditions in 2021/22 is contained in Appendix 1. 
 

Page 73



 6  

 

6.6 Tables 4 to 8 below provide further details on our investments and our lending 
portfolio as at 31st March 2022. Further detail on performance against budget can be 

found within the Q4 Financial Monitoring report 2021/22. 
 

Table 4: Summary of Interest Received 2021/22 
 

 Interest Received  

£ 

Short Term investment interest received in year (cash) 

 

20,811 

Short-Term investment interest to be received in 22/23 

relating to 21/22 (accrual) 

Nil 

Total Short-Term investment interest received 

 

20,811 

Long-Term investment interest received  104,303 

 

Total investment interest received 

 

125,114 

 

Table 5: Investment Balances 2021/22 
 

 Investment Balances 

(£m)  

Total Investment balance as at 1st April 2021 

 

18.0 

Short-Term periodic investments made in year 

 

1,489.3 

Short-Term investments matured in year 

 

(1,479.8) 

Total Short-Term investments as at 31st March 2022 

 

24.5 

Long-Term investments on-going 3.0 

 

Total investment balance as at 31st March 2022 

 

27.5 

 

Table 6: External Lending Investment Portfolio as at 31st March 2022 
 

Borrower 

 

Issue Date Maturity 

Date 

Investment 

£m 

Interest 

Rate 

DMO (Central Government) 31/03/22 01/04/22 24.5 0.50% 

Sub-Total   24.5  

CCLA Property Fund 28/04/18 Long-term 3.0 3.47% 

Total   27.5  

 

Table 7: Investment Limits 

 2021/22 
Max. amount 
placed per 
Institute 

31.03.22 
Actual per 
Institute 

2021/22 
Limit per 
Institute 

Complied 

DMO or UK Treasury Bills £30.5m £24.5m No limit √ 

Corporate Bonds Not used Nil £3m √ 

Page 74



 7  

 

UK Local Authority Not used Nil £3m √ 

Term Deposits with Banks Not used Nil £3m √ 

Certificates of Deposit with Banks Not used Nil £3m √ 

Call and Notice Accounts with Banks Not used Nil £3m √ 

Banks nationalised or part-
nationalised by UK Government 

Not used Nil £3m √ 

Floating Rates Notes with Banks Not used Nil £3m √ 

Money Market Funds £3m Nil £3m √ 

Property Funds £3m £3m £5m √ 

 

6.7 The Head of Finance reports that all treasury management activities undertaken 
during the year complied fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s 
approved Strategy. 

 
Table 8: Investment Benchmarking 

 
 Credit 

Score 

Credit 

Rating 

Bail-in 

exposure 

Weighted 

Average 

Maturity 

(days) 

Average 

Rate of 

Return % 

Worcester 

City 

31.03.2021 

3.67 AA- 0% 1 0.65% 

Worcester 

City 

31.03.2022 

2.67 AA 0% 1 0.89% 

Similar LAs 4.37 AA- 61% 43 1.18% 

All LAs 4.39 AA- 60% 14 0.97% 

 

6.8 As can be seen from the table above, the Council has been able to lower its average 
credit score and bank bail-in exposure by avoiding investments with banks and 

favouring central government deposits or money market funds which are much 
safer.  
 

6.9 £3m of the Council’s investments are now held in an externally managed strategic 
pooled Property Fund where short-term security and liquidity are lesser 

considerations and the objectives instead are regular revenue income and long-term 
price stability. This has enabled the Council to maintain its overall average rate of 
return in line with other LAs. Because this fund has no defined maturity date, but is 

available for withdrawal after a notice period, its performance and continued 
suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives is regularly reviewed. 

Investments such as these are made in the knowledge that capital values will move 
both up and down on months, quarters and even years; but with the confidence that 

over a five-year period total returns should exceed cash interest rates.  
 
6.10 In the nine months to December improved market sentiment was reflected in equity, 

property and multi-asset fund valuations and, in turn, in the capital value of the 
Council’s property fund investment. This moved up from £2.7m to £3.2m. The 

prospect of higher inflation and rising bond yields did however result in muted bond 
fund performance.  In the January- March quarter the two dominant themes were 

Page 75



 8  

 

tighter UK and US monetary policy and higher interest rates, and the military 
invasion of Ukraine by Russia in February, the latter triggering significant volatility 

and uncertainty in financial markets.   
 
6.11 In light of Russia’s invasion, Arlingclose contacted the fund managers of our Money 

Market fund investments and confirmed no direct exposure to Russian or Belarusian 
assets had been identified. Indirect exposures were immaterial. It should be noted 

that that any assets held by banks and financial institutions (e.g. from loans to 
companies with links to those countries) within MMFs and other pooled funds cannot 
be identified easily or with any certainty as that level of granular detail is unlikely to 

be available to the fund managers or Arlingclose in the short-term, if at all. 
 

7. Treasury Management Indicators 
 

7.1 The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks 
using the following indicators. 

 

7.2 Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk 
by monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. 

This is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2 etc.) and 
taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated 
investments are assigned a score based on their perceived risk. 

 
 

 

31.03.22 

Actual 

2021/22 

Target 

Complied? 

Portfolio average credit rating AA AA- Yes 

 
7.3 Liquidity: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity 

risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments 

within a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing. 
 

 

 

31.03.22 

Actual 

2021/22 

Target 

Complied? 

Total cash available within 3 months £24.5m £5m Yes 

 

7.4 Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to 
interest rate risk. The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or 
fall in interests was: 

 
 

 

31.03.22 

Actual 

£000 

2021/22 

Limit 

£000 

Complied? 

Upper limit on one-year revenue 

impact of a 1% rise in interest rates 

15 105 Yes 

Upper limit on one-year revenue 

impact of a 1% fall in interest rates 

Nil (105) Yes 

 
The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that 

maturing loans and investment will be replaced at current rates. 

Page 76



 9  

 

 
7.5 Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s 

exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of 
all borrowing were: 
 

Refinancing rate risk indicator 

 

31.03.22 

Actual 

Upper 

limit 

Lower 

limit 

Complied? 

Under 12 months 34% 100% 0% Yes 

12 months and within 24 months 7% 100% 0% Yes 

24 months and within 5 years 21% 100% 0% Yes 

5 years and within 10 years 38% 100% 0% Yes 

10 years and above 0% 100% 0% Yes 

 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. Note: 
LOBO option dates are treated as potential repayment dates. 

 
7.6 Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than a year: The purpose of this indicator 

is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early 
repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to 
final maturities beyond the period end were: 

 
 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Actual principal invested beyond year end £3m £3m £3m 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £6m £6m £6m 

Complied? Yes Yes Yes 

 
7.7 IFRS 16 

The implementation of the new IFRS 16 Leases accounting standard was due to 

come into for force for local authorities from 1st April 2022. Following a consultation 
CIFPA/LASAAC announced an optional two-year delay to the implementation of this 

standard a decision which was confirmed by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board 
in early April 2022. Councils can now choose to adopt the new standard on 1st April 
2022, 1st April 2023 or 1st April 2024. The Council intends to adopt the new standard 

on 1st April 2024. 
 

8. Non-Treasury Investments 
 
8.1 The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised 2021 Treasury Management Code 

covers all the financial assets of the Council as well as other non-financial assets 
which the Council holds primarily for financial return. Investments that do not meet 

the definition of treasury management investments (i.e. management of surplus 
cash) are categorised as either for service purposes (made explicitly to further 
service objectives) and or for commercial purposes (made primarily for financial 

return). 
 

8.2 Investment Guidance issued by the Department for Levelling Up Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) and Welsh Government also broadens the definition of 
investments to include all such assets held partially or wholly for financial return.  

 

Page 77



 10  

 

8.3 The Council held £19,269,750 of such investments in: 
• Directly owned property = £18,401,950 

• Loan to Worcestershire F.A. = £750,000 
• Loan to Lower Wick Swimming Pool = £97,800 
• Loan to Kiln CIC = £20,000 

• Shared ownership housing = Nil 
• Shareholding in subsidiaries = Nil 

• Loans to subsidiaries = Nil  
 
8.4 These investments generated £1,127,970 of gross income in 2021/22. 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer:  Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 

Tel: 01905  722007  
e-mail: mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 78

mailto:mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk


 11  

 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Treasury Management Annual Report 

Background information from our Treasury advisors; Arlingclose 
 

 
Economic Background for 2021/22 

 

The continuing economic recovery from coronavirus pandemic, together with the war in 
Ukraine, higher inflation, and higher interest rates were major issues over the period.   

 
Bank Rate was 0.1% at the beginning of the reporting period. April and May saw the 

economy gathering momentum as the shackles of the pandemic restrictions were eased.  
Despite the improving outlook, market expectations were that the Bank of England would 
delay rate rises until 2022. Rising, persistent inflation changed that. 

 
UK CPI was 0.7% in March 2021 but thereafter began to steadily increase. Initially driven 

by energy price effects and by inflation in sectors such as retail and hospitality which were 
re-opening after the pandemic lockdowns, inflation then was believed to be temporary.  
Thereafter price rises slowly became more widespread, as a combination of rising global 

costs and strong demand was exacerbated by supply shortages and transport dislocations. 
The surge in wholesale gas and electricity prices led to elevated inflation expectations. CPI 

for February 2022 registered 6.2% year on year, up from 5.5% in the previous month and 
the highest reading in the National Statistic series. Core inflation, which excludes the more 
volatile components, rose to 5.2% y/y from 4.4%. 

 
The government’s jobs furlough scheme insulated the labour market from the worst effects 

of the pandemic. The labour market began to tighten and demand for workers grew 
strongly as employers found it increasingly difficult to find workers to fill vacant jobs.  
Having peaked at 5.2% in December 2020, unemployment continued to fall and the most 

recent labour market data for the three months to January 2022 showed the 
unemployment rate at 3.9% while the employment rate rose to 75.6%. Headline 3-month 

average annual growth rate for wages were 4.8% for total pay and 3.8% for regular pay. 
In real terms, after adjusting for inflation, total pay growth was up 0.1% while regular pay 
fell by 1.0%. 

 
With the fading of lockdown – and, briefly, the ‘pingdemic’ – restraints, activity in 

consumer-facing sectors improved substantially as did sectors such as oil and mining with 
the reopening of oil rigs but materials shortages and the reduction in the real spending 
power of households and businesses dampened some of the growth momentum. Gross 

domestic product (GDP) grew by an upwardly revised 1.3% in the fourth calendar quarter 
of 2021 according to the final estimate (initial estimate 1.0%) and took UK GDP to just 

0.1% below where it was before the pandemic. The annual growth rate was revised down 
slightly to 7.4% (from 7.5%) following a revised 9.3% fall in 2020. 
 

Having increased Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25% in December, the Bank of England hiked 
it further to 0.50% in February and 0.75% in March. At the meeting in February, the 

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted unanimously to start reducing the stock of its 
asset purchase scheme by ceasing to reinvest the proceeds from maturing bonds as well as 

starting a programme of selling its corporate bonds. 
 

Page 79



 12  

 

In its March interest rate announcement, the MPC noted that the invasion of Ukraine had 
caused further large increases in energy and other commodity prices, with the expectation 

that the conflict will worsen supply chain disruptions around the world and push CPI 
inflation to around 8% later in 2022, even higher than forecast only a month before in the 
February Monetary Policy Report. The Committee also noted that although GDP in January 

was stronger than expected with business confidence holding up and the labour market 
remaining robust, consumer confidence had fallen due to the squeeze in real household 

incomes. 
 
Credit Review 

 
In the first half of FY 2021-22 credit default swap (CDS) spreads were flat over most of 

period and are broadly in line with their pre-pandemic levels. In September spreads rose 
by a few basis points due to concerns around Chinese property developer Evergrande 

defaulting but then fell back. Fitch and Moody’s revised upward the outlook on a number of 
UK banks and building societies on the Council’s counterparty list to ‘stable’, recognising 
their improved capital positions compared to 2020 and better economic growth prospects in 

the UK. 
 

Fitch also revised the outlook for Nordea, Svenska Handelsbanken and Handelsbanken plc 
to stable. The agency considered the improved economic prospects in the Nordic region to 
have reduced the baseline downside risks it previously assigned to the lenders. 

 
The successful vaccine rollout programme was credit positive for the financial services 

sector in general and the improved economic outlook meant some institutions were able to 
reduce provisions for bad loans. However, in 2022, the uncertainty engendered by Russia’s 
invasion of Ukraine pushed CDS prices modestly higher over the first calendar quarter, but 

only to levels slightly above their 2021 averages, illustrating the general resilience of the 
banking sector. 

 
Having completed its full review of its credit advice on unsecured deposits, in September 
Arlingclose extended the maximum duration limit for UK bank entities on its recommended 

lending list from 35 days to 100 days; a similar extension was advised in December for the 
non-UK banks on this list. As ever, the institutions and durations on the Council’s 

counterparty list recommended by Arlingclose remains under constant review. 
 

Page 80



 

 
 

Report to: Council, 5th July 2022 
 

Report of: Chair of Communities Committee 
 

 
Subject: REFERRAL REPORT FROM COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 8TH JUNE 2022 - 

PROVISION OF A NEW ARTIFICIAL GRASS PITCH AT PERDISWELL 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Council agrees an ‘in principle’ capital allocation of £200k to unlock 

specialist support from the Football Foundation to facilitate the 
development of a business case and detailed design. 

 
2. Background 
 

2.1 At the meeting on 8th June 2022, the Committee approved the progression of a 
business case and detailed design for a multi-use Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) at 

Perdiswell. 

2.2 The Football Foundation need to see a complete business case and approve it. At this 
point they have provisionally allocated a specialist to work with the Council to reach 

approval stage but require a capital commitment by the Council. 
 

2.3 In accordance with the Constitution, changes to the Policy and Budgetary Framework 
are reserved to full Council to determine. 

 

3. Information 
 

3.1 The full Committee report is attached (Appendix 1). 

 
Ward(s):   Claines and St. Stephen 

Contact Officer: Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and 
Resources Tel: 01905 722536 Email: 

shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: None 
 

 
 

Page 81 Agenda Item 10b



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Communities Committee, 8th June 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Operations, Homes & Communities 
 

 
Subject: PROVISION OF A NEW ARTIFICIAL GRASS PITCH AT PERDISWELL 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

That the Committee:  
 

1.1 Approve the progression of a business case and detailed design for a multi-
use Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) at Perdiswell; 

 
1.2 Recommend to Council an ‘in principle’ capital allocation of £200k that is 

required to unlock specialist support from the Football Foundation to 

facilitate the development of a business case and detailed design; 
 

1.3 Note that the Council would be required to pay costs of up to £10k should 
the Football Foundation or the Council decide the project is no longer viable 
as part of the application process. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 At its meeting of 10 July 2018, the Income Generation Sub-Committee considered a 

report into a number of potential sports developments including tennis provision, 

hockey and football, particularly in respect of five-a-side football pitches and pitches 
suitable for all-weather use. The Committee agreed to provide £25,000 to fund a 

feasibility study into the potential development of a Futsal facility and an Artificial 
Grass Pitch. 

2.2 A range of assessments were undertaken, and reports prepared for Committee in 

winter 2019/20 which were deferred due to focus on other developments. At the 
same time, the Football Foundation published its priorities for football development 

in Worcester and included an identified need for additional small-sided playing 
pitches and AWP provision. The Local Football Foundation Plan (LFFP) was presented 
to, and approved by, the Communities Committee at its meeting of 29th January 

2020. 

2.3 The assessments included a proposed business case for each facility.  As the financial 

information which supported these proposals was out of date it was necessary to 
undertake revisions in the light of cost increases that have been experienced on 
other capital works because of the Covid-19 Pandemic and supply chain issues.  

2.4 At its meeting of 10 November 2021, the Income Generation Sub-Committee agreed 
to commission the necessary revised costings and receive a report on whether the 

schemes remain finically viable. The work was commissioned from Raise Partnership 
and the report concluded that both the All-Weather Pitch and Futsal schemes 

Page 83 Agenda Item 10b
Appendix 1



 

remained financially viable, with the AGP project dependent upon receipt of a grant 
from the Football Foundation, the terms and conditions of which requires that 

surplus income derived from the facility would need to be ring-fenced to it for future 
maintenance and re-provision. It was also agreed that a report would be prepared 
for the future consideration of the Communities Committee to consider proposals for 

taking the AGP project forward. 

2.5 At its meeting of 9th March 2022, the Income Generation Sub-Committee noted 

updated cost models for Futsal and a full-sized Artificial Grass Pitch at Perdiswell and 
agreed to receive a further report on the creation of additional new five-a-side 
pitches at the rear of the Leisure Centre.  

2.6 The current position is that the Football Foundation need to see a complete business 
case and approve it. At this point they have provisionally allocated a specialist to 

work with the Council to reach approval stage, but require a capital commitment by 
the Council. 

2.7 To provide further context in common with every local area across England, the 
Football Association, supported by the Premier League and Sport England, produced 
an LFFP in conjunction with the Football Foundation, Worcester City Council, and the 

County Sports Partnership for Herefordshire and Worcestershire, which feeds into the 
National Football Facility Strategy. 

2.8 The purpose of this strategy is to target significantly increased investment from the 
national funding partners into more and better facilities for the grassroots game. 
Projects listed within the LFFP may benefit from funding from the Football 

Foundation. 
 

2.9 The plan identifies priority projects for Worcester accordingly.  These are grouped 
into the 4 FA priorities: 
 

• New 3G football turf pitches 
• Improved natural turf pitches 

• New changing pavilions / clubhouses 
• Improved small-sided facilities (e.g., Futsal/Five-a-side football) 

 

2.10 These national priorities are supplemented by the priorities of the Regional FA in 
respect of each locality.  For Worcester these have been identified as: 

 
• Disability Football 
• Female Football 

• Just Play 
• Small Sided Football. 

 
2.11 The number one Priority Project within the LFFP highlights the need for a new 3G 

Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) at Perdiswell Leisure Centre. 

 
2.12 The latest Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sports Strategy (PPOSS) for Worcester 

(December 2021) which was produced as an evidence-based document as part of 
the South Worcestershire Development Plan Review for Worcester, also highlights a 
short fall of three 3G pitches in the city. Perdiswell Leisure Centre is referred to as 

the priority site, with two pitch conversions (sand dressed to 3G) at the University 
and Nunnery Wood Sports Complex also listed, along with reference to a nearby 

Page 84



 

alternative location as a recognised local alternative venue should the Perdiswell 
project not be approved by committee.  

2.13 The Local Football Facilities Plan for Worcester links to the latest PPOSS strategy and 
both documents identify Perdiswell as the highest-ranking priority location in the 
area for enhancement. This is supported by the existing infrastructure that is already 

in place such as adjacent changing, shower and toilet facilities, car parking and café 
facilities for spectators. 

3. Business case 
 

3.1 Projects listed within the LFFP are able to benefit from funding from the Football 

Foundation and following discussions with representatives from the Worcestershire 
Football Association and the Football Foundation on the 4th April 2022 the Delivery 

Manager (West Midlands region) confirmed that the Football Foundation are about to 
enter into a three year funding cycle with the largest budget they’ve received since 

the organisation was founded in the year 2000, and that there is a strong likelihood 
that the proposal would benefit from grant funding of 75% of the costs of 
approximately £800,000.   

 
3.2 The following table provides an approximate high-level construction budget 

breakdown: 
 

 

Item £ 

New 3G AGP £760,000.00 

Fees and Contingencies £40,000.00 

Total £800,000.00 

 

3.3 The financial business case, based on budgetary figures, for providing the new pitch 

at Perdiswell is as follows: 
 

 

Item (Capital) £ 

Cost of Construction 800,000 

Football Foundation Grant (600,000) 

Net Cost 200,000 

Item (Revenue) £ 

Cost of borrowing  8,400 

Lifecycle Costs   35,000 

Maintenance  25,000 

Total Costs (per annum) 68,400 

Projected Annual Income  (90,000) 

Net Surplus (21,600) 

 

3.4 These figures are based on proven demand and existing income achieved for other 
artificial grass pitches in the city.  

 
3.5 The projected surplus is in line with expectations of the Football Foundation.  There 

may be funding conditions within the Football Foundation grant which requires 

evidence of the net 3G AGP surplus being re-invested in football facilities. This is 
designed to ensure that the facility is sustainable.  

Page 85



 

 
3.6 At this stage it is assumed the current booking arrangements undertaken by 

Freedom Leisure for the existing small-sided artificial pitches (refurbished in October 
2021) will be extended to include the new AGP, with an adjustment in the 
management fee paid to the Council to be negotiated and agreement for any surplus 

income to be set aside as part of the creation of a sinking fund.  
 

3.7 The preferred option is to construct a new 3G AGP to the side of the building at right 
angles to the 6 current grass pitches and adjacent to the existing Football 
Foundation changing accommodation.  

3.8 Investigations into the site conditions have concluded that it is suitable for a 3G AGP.  

3.9 In respect of changing room capacity, currently Perdiswell has 8 full size changing 

rooms funded by a grant from the Football Foundation in 2006, and this is 
considered adequate and able to cater for any increased demand. 

4. Alternative Options Considered 
 

Do nothing 

4.1 The do-nothing option was discounted as this is an opportunity for the Council to 
benefit from substantial grant funding and to continue to invest in the provision of 

sport and activity at the City Council’s flagship leisure centre. 

Alternative locations 

4.2 With regards to the location of the 3G AGP, other alternative options have been 

considered. 

4.3 The first was to locate it at the rear of the Leisure Centre. However, a 3G AGP in this 

location would require the loss of hedgerow, trees and public open space from the 
old golf course; increasing light and noise pollution into this area.  Test pit 
investigations have shown it would also have required construction in the landfill 

area, adding to cost and potential environmental concerns. 

4.4 A further issue with using the land behind the Leisure Centre is that it would remove 

the future capacity for dedicated Futsal/5-a-side/football facilities. The proposed 
indoor Futsal Centre also requires a smaller footprint than the AGP and does not 
require the loss of the hedge or public open space on the old Golf Course and does 

not introduce lighting or noise into this area.  

4.5 Using the area at the rear of the Leisure Centre for the provision of the new AGP 

would also necessitate the need to demolish the two existing small 5-a-side pitches 
which were refurbished by Freedom Leisure in October 2021 and which would 
therefore require a reimbursement from the Council.   

4.6 The second option for the introduction of a 3G AGP in the Perdiswell area is to locate 
it at a nearby location, subject to their validation of the suitability of their site.  

Meetings with both the Worcestershire Football Association and the Football 
Foundation have confirmed that they have been in conversation with a local partner 
about this option and have indicated that should the LFFP/PPOSS preferred option of 

Perdiswell not proceed then that site would be considered as an alternative.  

Page 86



 

The Council would be prepared to work in partnership with the alternative provider to 
support their proposal.  

5. Implications 
 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

 
These are included in the report. If the proposal does not go forward the Council will 

be expected to contribute £10,000 towards the Football Foundation’s costs. A Leisure 
Developments Reserve was previously created to support such opportunities. It has 
an uncommitted balance of £31,203 at 31 March 2022 but is subject to a potential 

withdrawal of £10,000 for an item elsewhere on the June 2022 Communities 
Committee agenda.  

 
5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

 
The proposal for the new AGP at Perdiswell would require it to be sited on land 
currently designated as public open space. Subject to the local policies in a local 

development plan, if land is held as public open space it cannot be disposed of unless 
the process under section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) is 

used. The disposal must be advertised, and objections considered before any 
disposal can take place. 
 

Furthermore, Perdiswell was subject to a Council Motion (that was approved) in 
November 2016 which stated that: ‘The freehold of Perdiswell is owned by this 

Council and is established public open space. In the interests of local democracy this 
Council believes Perdiswell should remain so and not be sold, leased, transferred or 
given away for any other purpose than its current designated status. Should any 

proposal to sell, lease, transfer or give away land at Perdiswell come forward Full 
Council should determine any such proposal rather than Officer delegation or 

Cabinet’. 
 
Planning permission would also be required for an artificial grass pitch at this location 

and both the Council and the Local Football Foundation will work with the Planning 
Authority in respect of an application should a final business case be approved by 

The Local Football Foundation Board, and separately Worcester City Council. 
 

Should the Council be successful in its application for Grant funding from the Football 

Foundation, further decision(s) may be required to accept the funding and any 
conditions associated with it. 

 

5.3 Risk Implications 
 

As this project has a defined scope, the risk of cost escalation in Capital Build 
estimates has been mitigated by thorough investigation of the prevailing ground 
conditions, detailed design considerations and working with different specialist 

suppliers and technical advisors to arrive at robust cost estimates.  The proposed 
feasibility studies will provide similar comfort on any further projects on this site, 

which will in any case be brought back to Committee for review. 
 
 

 

Page 87



 

Similar measures have been put in place to ensure accuracy in the business revenue 
model forecast, which are either based on established income achieved at similar 

facilities owned by the Council in Worcester, or from information from the Football 
Foundation, or from the sports management/consultancy sectors.  These have a 
great deal of uniformity, which gives a high level of confidence in the projections.  

This equally applies to forecast running, maintenance and lifecycle costs of the 
facility to mitigate any risk of the facility becoming unsustainable or unable to 

support its own replacement costs. 
 

The risk of the AGP proposal for Perdiswell not getting planning permission is 

mitigated by the existence of alternative planning permissions for the site.   
 

The risk in respect of the construction phases of the project will be mitigated by the 

procurement of independent Programme Management, to manage the Programme 
and oversee constituent elements, from design and funding application/agreement 
through to completion.   

 
5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

 
The proposals in this report are compliant with, and supportive of, the LFFP and 
recently updated PPOSS in respect of the improvement of 3G AGP provision in the 

city.  
 

The proposals in this report support Theme 3 of the City Plan – a Healthy and Active 
City. 

 

5.5 Equality Implications 
 

As stated in 2.9 the LFFP sets out to support the development of the Worcestershire 
Football Associations key strategic priorities. 

 

All of the proposals in the FFP are therefore designed to promote equality and 
inclusivity in sport by ensuring that there is capacity for all genders, abilities, 

disabilities, ages and backgrounds, regardless of social position or affordability 
considerations.  
 

The additional capacity for all forms of football at Perdiswell resulting from this 
proposal will mean more people can participate in the sport. Currently the six grass 

football pitches are mainly used by Worcester City Football Club Youth FC at 
weekends. However, due to a lack of local training facilities they currently have to 
use six different venues both within and outside the city to meet their demand.  

 
The Club also have an ambition to quadruple the number of girls teams.  

 
It is the Council’s intention that the proposed full sized AGP will meet the required 

regulations to permit match fixtures to be played on the surface at weekends, with 
local Sunday league teams able to benefit from the excellent facilities that would be 
on offer, whilst also reducing undue wear and tear on the existing grass pitches.  

 
The proposal will therefore make a contribution to the Council’s aim to further 

strengthen Worcester’s growing national and international reputation as a centre for 
inclusive sport. 

 

Page 88



 

5.6 Human Resources Implications 
 

There are no HR implications for the Council in respect of these proposals. 
 
5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

 
There are no Health and Safety Implications for the Council in respect of these 

proposals. 
 

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

 
The Social benefits of the proposals are indicated by the number of measures 

supported against Theme 3 of the City Plan and in respect of the equality/inclusivity 
benefits outlined in section 5.5.  More people from different ability ranges will be 

able to participate in football.  This all helps to build strong communities and reduce 
social isolation. 
 

The ‘turn up and play’ and ‘free of charge’ aspect of the Community facilities, is of 
particular benefit to casual players or those who do not have access to or the 

financial or time resources to commit to playing for a Chartered Football Club. In this 
respect the proposals will play an important role in providing easier access to 
‘football’ for those from unprivileged backgrounds via programmes organised, 

promoted and delivered by Freedom Leisure’s Active Communities team. 
 

Environmental consequences of the proposals have been considered throughout and 
articulated in Section 4 where relevant.  The proposed 3G AGP would introduce 
floodlighting and some additional evening noise into to the area between the Leisure 

Centre and existing Grass Pitches. However, the Light Spill analysis for the proposed 
lighting scheme shows lighting would be limited to the curtilage of the pitch and the 

distance from residential properties would mean that noise nuisance would be 
minimal. 
 

The proposal will also bring economic benefits to Worcester in terms of a healthier 
population. 

 
 
Ward(s):   Claines and St Stephen Wards 

 
Contact Officer: Lloyd Griffiths – Corporate Director – Operations, Homes & 

Communities 
Tel: 01905 722536 
E-mail: Lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk  

 
Background Papers: None  

Page 89

mailto:Lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Council, 5th July 2022 
 

Report of: Chair of Policy and Resources Committee 
 

 
Subject: REFERRAL REPORT FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 4TH 

JULY 2022 – TERMINATION OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS 
MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 

 

1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Council approves the return of the Revenues and Benefits to an in-
house shared service, with staff employed by Malvern Hills District Council, 

noting that further reports will be brought to the Policy and Resources 
Committee once the transfer has been completed and a review of the 
service has commenced. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 At the meeting on 4th July 2022, the Committee will consider a report on the return 

of the management of the South Worcestershire Revenues and Benefits Shared 

Service to the Shared Service partnership arrangement that was previously in place. 

2.2 The earliest requested date of transfer is 30th October 2022. If this is to be achieved, 

Council approval to terminate the contract early is required to ensure that there is 
time for a full and detailed consultation with the staff who will transfer. 
 

3. Information 
 

3.1 The full Committee report is attached (Appendix 1). 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and 
Resources Tel: 01905 722536 Email: 

shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: None 
 

 
 

Page 91 Agenda Item 10c



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Policy and Resources Committee, 4th July 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: TERMINATION OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee recommends to Council the return of the Revenues and 
Benefits to an in-house shared service, with staff employed by Malvern Hills 

District Council, noting that further reports will be brought to this 
Committee once the transfer has been completed and a review of the 

service has commenced. 
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 At its meeting of 14 December 2021, the Committee received a report on the 

request received from Civica to withdraw early from its management of the South 
Worcestershire Revenues and Benefits Shared Service (SWRBSS). The Committee 
approved the recommendation that management of the service be returned to the 

Shared Service partnership arrangement that was previously in place. The report is 
at Appendix 1 for reference.  

2.2 Since that date, officers have worked with Civica to agree terms of the transfer, 
although the actual date of transfer has yet to be agreed. If the earliest requested 
date of 30 October 2022 is to be achieved, Council approval to terminate the 

contract early is required by the date of the meeting of 5 July to ensure that there is 
time for a full and detailed consultation with the staff who will transfer.  

 
2.3 As reported previously, the service will remain hosted physically by Wychavon 

District Council but it is now proposed that the staff will transfer under TUPE 

regulations into the employment of Malvern Hills District Council. A comparison 
between the three Councils of pay points of the staff to be transferred showed this to 

be the least-cost option due to the grade boundaries of each of the roles. 
 

2.4 The report of 14 December anticipated that savings are likely to be achieved by the 

transfer, in comparison with other services that have returned in house in recent 
years. However significant savings are not now expected to materialise for two main 

reasons: 
 

• Additional resources have been required to bring the establishment up to its full 

complement. 

 

• On transfer, staff will be eligible to join the local government pension scheme. It 
is assumed that they will take up this option and therefore employer 
contributions will be incurred. These will be in addition to current costs within the 

contract. 

Page 93 Agenda Item 10c
Appendix 1



 

 
2.5 Worcester City Council’s proportion of the annual sum for the managed service 

contract will therefore remain initially at its current level of £1,256,840. 
 

2.6 Changes in working practices are being explored by the partnership to identify any 

potential efficiencies that may arise on transfer. The result of these considerations 
will be reported to committee at future meetings along with consideration of the 

option to withdraw from the partnership and re-establish a directly-managed service 
in house, post transfer. 

 

2.7 On the basis of work done to date, the Committee is asked to recommend 
proceeding with the transfer to Council for approval, with a view to undertaking 

further due diligence once the transfer is complete. 
 

3. Preferred Option  
 
3.1 To recommend to Council that the service is returned to a shared service as existed 

under the arrangements prior to 1 October 2013, with the variation that staff will 
transfer into the employment of Malvern Hills District Council. 

4. Alternative Options Considered 
 

4.1 The alternative transfer options considered were set out in the report of 14 

December 2021 attached. 

5. Implications 

 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

The transfer will be cost neutral to all three Councils within the shared service in the 
first instance. There is an opportunity to explore further options to achieve 

efficiencies once the transfer is complete.  
 

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

The implications are set out in the report attached.  
 

5.3 Risk Implications 

The implications are set out in the report attached.  
  

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

The implications are set out in the report attached.  
 

5.5 Equality Implications 

None arising directly from this report. 
 

5.6 Human Resources Implications 

A transfer of staff would be required under the TUPE regulations. It is proposed that 

staff transfer into the employment of Malvern Hills District Council. The TUPE 
Regulations provide a significant degree of legal protection for transferring 

employees over their terms and conditions and actions related to the transfer. 
 

 

Page 94



 

5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

None arising directly from this report. 

 

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

The implications are set out in the report attached.  

 
 

 

 
Ward(s):   All wards 

Contact Officer: Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance and Resources. 
Email: Shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk. Tel: 07710 854096 

Background Papers: None  
 

Page 95

mailto:Shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk


 

 
 

Report to: Policy and Resources Committee, 14th December 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: TERMINATION OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee approve the return of the Revenues and Benefits to an 
in-house shared service. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 On 2nd July 2007 the three south Worcestershire Councils agreed to form a Joint 

Committee for the purposes of setting up a joint and shared service in respect of 

their obligations to provide Revenues and Benefits Services known as the South 
Worcestershire Revenues and Benefits Shared Service (SWRBSS). 

2.2 Further to the introduction of the Welfare Reform Act 2012, the Councils agreed to 
seek a strategic partner to assist in the provision and growth of SWRBSS. In 
December 2012 the Councils sought a service management provider for the SWRBSS 

by means of a public tender exercise and, following an extensive competitive 
process, selected Civica to provide SWRBSS, including a Customer Contact centre. 

2.3 In 2018/19 and 2019/20 respectively Malvern Hills and Worcester City Council 
withdrew from the Customer Services contract. Customer Services were transferred 
on 1 April 2020 to 89 the High Street and Trinity Road Housing Services centre. 

2.4 The commencement date of the main SWRBSS contract was 1 October 2013 and the 
initial contract term was five years, with a potential extension up to a further five 

years. The extension was approved in 2018 and the contract is therefore due to 
terminate on 1 October 2023. 
 

2.5 Civica have contacted the three partner councils and have advised that they do not 
intend to renew the contract and have requested early termination by December 

2022. This will allow sufficient time for current systems developments to be 
completed and sufficiently embedded and for any TUPE transfers to be completed for 
the succeeding provider to maintain continuity of service. 

 
2.6 Worcester City Council’s proportion of the annual sum for the managed service 

contract is £1,256,840. 
 
3. Preferred Option  

 
3.1 To return the service to a shared service as existed under the arrangements prior to 

1 October 2013. 

 

Page 96



 

4. Alternative Options Considered 
 

To retender the contract 

4.1 Since the roll out of Universal Credit, the demand for Housing Benefit processing has 
significantly reduced. The demand will continue to reduce as existing claimants move 

across from Housing Benefit and new claimants automatically claim Universal Credit. 
There is, therefore, a declining market for managed services in Revenues and 

Benefits and there are a limited number of existing companies operating in the 
sector with no new entrants. 

4.2 Retendering the contract will enable the Council to market test the facility but will 

not lead to increased control over the service. The Council has successfully brought 
services such as Property Management and Customer Services in house and 

delivered savings of over £250,000 per year as a result. Given the value of the 
contract with Civica, and the reduction in staff costs that have been incurred since 

the contract was let due to the reduction in HB processing, there will be quantifiable 
savings if the contract is brought back in house.   

To dissolve the partnership and for Worcester City Council to establish a full stand-

alone Revenues and Benefits service  

4.3 The original transfer was from the three councils acting in partnership as SWRBSS to 

Civica Services. Therefore, a transfer under TUPE regulations back to SWRBSS would 
be a straightforward arrangement with least disruption to the service. The existing 
employees of Civica that are engaged for at least 50% of their time on the contract 

would transfer across unless they chose not to do so. 

4.4 Disaggregating the contract would require the partners to dissolve the existing 

shared service arrangements. It would be necessary to determine which, if any, of 
the staff are currently supporting Worcester, rather than the other two councils, for 
50% of their time and to undertake a recruitment exercise to fill any required posts 

which were not transferred. This would include lead officers for Council Tax and 
Business Rates Collection as well as Housing Benefit and CTS assessment and 

processing who are, by default, currently spending at most 33% of their time on 
Worcester City Council. 

4.5 It would also require the disaggregation of the central database which is shared by 

all three councils within the processing system and the procurement of a stand-alone 
system for the Council. This, along with the staffing requirements identified above, 

will reduce the potential financial gains from the return of the management of the 
service.     

5. Implications 

 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

These are set out in the report. The transfer of the service in-house to the existing 
partnership has the potential to realise significant annual reductions in costs. Should 
the Council opt to withdraw from the partnership and manage revenues and benefits 

directly there would be reduced potential for savings and the Council may be 
required to make a compensating payment to the partnership to cover the residual 

costs of providing the service. As the management contract is terminating this is 
likely to be limited to the costs of disaggregating the database and systems. The 
potential value of any such payment has not been quantified at this stage. 

Page 97



 

 
5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

The Council, as a billing authority, has a statutory duty to provide revenues and 
benefits services on behalf of its citizens, businesses and premises owners and 
precepting bodies. The management of processes relating to the delivery of these 

services can be outsourced to third parties under regulations, although responsibility 
remains with the Council. 

  
Under the terms of the contract, each party is required to provide six months’ notice 
of intention to terminate the agreement. This notice has been provided by Civica to 

the relevant officers of each of the three councils.   
 

The UK remains a signatory to the Treaty of Rome. The value of the contract is such 
that a full tender exercise would be required to re-let it under the terms of the 

Operating Journal of the European Union. If the OJEU notice conditions were not 
applied, given the UK’s withdrawal from the EU, a tender exercise on a similar scale 
would be required to ensure that value for money in the process was satisfactorily 

secured.  
 

5.3 Risk Implications 
Risk of loss of continuity of the service. Civica are preparing a contract change notice 
to set out the procedures for closedown and transfer once the implementation of the 

systems changes identified in the report are complete. This will specify actions to 
ensure that the service can continue – including the transfer of experienced staff – 

following transfer 
 
Cost savings not realised. No budget allowance has been made for cost savings. 

Therefore, if these are not achieved there will be no direct impact on existing 
budgets. A further tendering exercise or disaggregation from the shared service can 

be undertaken subsequent to the transfer if it were deemed that value for money 
had not been achieved. 
   

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
The range of shared services was considered by the Committee in October 2018 as 

part of a report on the then Transformation Programme. There is no standing policy 
in respect of shared services but each is reviewed for value for money as part of 
budget discussions that take place annually. The Revenues and Benefits shared 

service management board which consist of officers from Civica and the Deputy 
Chief Executives form Malvern Hills and Wychavon and the Corporate Director for 

Worcester would continue to oversee the management of the service, with senior 
managers from the transferred service replacing Civica staff. 
 

5.5 Equality Implications 
None arising directly from this report. 

 
5.6 Human Resources Implications 

A transfer of staff would be required under the TUPE regulations. Should the shared 

service operate as per the arrangements to October 2013, the staff currently based 
in the Wychavon Office would remain in situ. Disaggregation of the contract would 

require the allocation of staff across the three authorities and an assimilation 
exercise to align pay and conditions with Worcester City Council terms.  

 

Page 98



 

A resource within the Internal Audit Shared Service is allocated 100% to review of 
Housing Benefit and CTS processing. This role would be reassigned to other audit 

work within the shared service, although a specific quality control function for this 
activity would still be required to provide management information on the 
effectiveness and efficiency of operations. 

 
5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

None arising directly from this report. If the staff transferring remain in situ then 

existing health and safety considerations would apply. 

 

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

Housing Benefits and Council Tax support are essential facilities to support those in 

need, while collection and Council Tax and Busines Rates is a function of billing 
authorities enshrined in statute. Effective management of this range of services is 
important to provide consistent and fair collection of taxes and timely and full benefit 

support for those who need it. It is therefore important to ensure that these services 
are controlled effectively, managed well and operate within the regulations set out 

by Government. Achieving this is a key component in securing the wellbeing of 
people cross the city and helping businesses and citizens to thrive within Worcester.  

 

 
 

 
Ward(s):   All Wards 
Contact Officer: Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance and Resources. 

Email: Shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk. Tel: 07710 854096 
Background Papers: None  
 

Page 99

mailto:Shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic.version0001 Extraordinary
	Minutes


	8 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England: Electoral Review - Warding Arrangements Consultation
	Draft Warding submission Worcester City Council July 2022

	9 Amendments to the Constitution
	10a Referral Report  from Policy and Resources Committee 24th May 2022 - Treasury Management Annual Report for 2021/22
	Appendix - Annual Treasury Report 2021-22 v3

	10b Referral Report from Communities Committee 8th June 2022 - Provision of a new Artificial Grass Pitch at Perdiswell
	Appendix - Communities Cttee - Provision of new artificial grass pitch at Perdiswell

	10c Referral Report from Policy and Resources Committee 4th July 2022 - Termination of Revenues and Benefits Management Contract
	Appendix - Civica contract
	Civica contract PR June 22a- ss amends.pdf (p.1-3)
	Appendix - Civica contract PR Dec 21.pdf (p.4-7)



